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KOLKATA, NEW DELHI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
THE N{EMBERS OF
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
I

We have audited tire accompanying financial statements of BALLY JLITE COMI'ANY LTD ("the
company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the statement of Profit and L,oss,

the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a sufirlnary of Sigrrificant
accouating policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31s Malcl'r 2025 (herei-nafter
referred to as "Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our in{ormation and according to the explanafions given to :us, e-xcept

for the possible effects of matter described in the basis for qualificd opinion Parngraph of our
report, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Comparjes Act 2013
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true ancl fair view in conformilv witir the accounling
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at IVIarch 31,,2A25, and.
its Profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Ilasis for Qualified Opinion

a) Attention is invite<I to Point (Xl)(b) of lrlote No. 1 of Statement of Significant Accounting
Policies regarding Gratuity provided as an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss in the
year in which the payment for the sarne has been made, which constitutes a deparfure frorn
the Accounting Standard 15 - "Employee Benefits " including disclosure requirernent under
the said standard. The consequential impact of the same in the reported Financial Statements
is disclosed in N ote No. 26

b) Attention is invited to Note No. 3L of the financial Statements regarding preparation of these
Financial statements as per Accounting Standards (AS) issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI') instead of 'fhe Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") in
view of the fact that the company made an application to the Stock Exchange for delisting of
its shares. 'fhe Consequential impact of the same on the reported financials rernains
unascertained.

16A, SHAKESPEARE SARANI, KOLKATA- 700 071 PHONE: 2292-677616807, FAX NO.:
Website : ry@1!@!|g Webmail : kolkata@rkothari.in
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We conclucted our audit in accordance with the Stanclarcls on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act,2013.Our responsibilities r,rncl5r those Standards are further described in

the Auditor,s Responsibilities for the Audii of the Frnancial Statements section of our report. we are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Cocle of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Acc.untants of India togetirer with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial statements un.le"r the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under'

arLd r.t e have fulfillecl our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the

Code of Ethics. we believe that the audit eviclence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our oPinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional iudgment, were o{rnost significance in our

audit of the financial statements of the current periocl. These matters were addressed in the context of

our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters. we have nothing to report in this regard'

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information' The

other information comprises the informati-on inclucled in the Company's Annual Report but does not

include the Financial Statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the Financial

Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in cloing so, consider rt hether the other information is materially inconsistent 'r't'ith the

Financial statements o, o]u knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated. If, based or-r thu work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information; we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibility of the Management for the Financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the pre'paration of these financial statolents that give a true and

fair view of the financial poriti'or9 financial pLfor*ut.e and cash flows of the Company in accordance

with the accounting prio.ipl", generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards

specified under ,".f,o., 133 of U,," a.t. fhis responsibility also includes mairrtenance of adequate

accounting record.s in accordance with the provisitns_of thl Act for Safeguarding of the assets of the

Company and for preventing and detecting?ruud, and other irregularities; selection and application of

uppropriut" implementation and maintenalnce of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudenq and design, implementalon and mdrntenance of adequate internal

financial controls, that wlre operating eteitivey for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, relevant to the prLparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraad or effor'
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, rnatters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management erther intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to c1o so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assur€rnce about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurtlnce, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expecte/ to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statement whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from errot, as frasd may involve collusioru forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3X0 of the

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the

company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to

events or conditions that may cast material doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a

Going Concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up io the date of our Auditor's report. Howevdr, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

a
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events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitucle of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in

aggregate', makes it piobable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

Financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

(i) planning the scope of ou audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate

the effect of any identiJied misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit ancl materiil audit finclings, including any material deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarJing independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that *uy"r"uroiubly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

relatecl safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central

Government Of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section L13 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in

the Annexure A, a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order , to the extent

applicable.

I. As required bv Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knou,ledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph of our

,"poi,in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books'

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this

Report are in agreement with the books of accounts

d) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, rn

our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, reacl with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ru1es, 2014'

e) On the basis of the written representations receivecl from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquali{ied as on 31st March, 2025

from being appointed as a director in terms of section 1,64 (2) of the Act.

0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
' 

Company ancl the op"ruUrl[ effectiveness of such controls, refe.r to our separate Report iI
"Annexure B".

II. With respect to the other matters to be includecl in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Ruie 11

of the Companies (Audit ancl Auditors) Rules, 201.4, tn our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

\
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a) The Company has disclosed the impact of penclrng litigations which would impact on financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note.25 to the financial statements;

b) The Company did not have any long term contlacts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirecfly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("tfltimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (A) and (B)

above, contain any material misstatement.

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year

0 Based on our examinatioru which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,

2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit 1og) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant ffansactions recorded in the software systems. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instdnce of the audit trail feature

being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
stafutory requirements for record retention.
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ilI With respect to the other matters to be inclucled in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(1,6\ of the Act, as amendecl .

In our opinion and to the best of our information ancl according to the explanations given to us, the

remuneiation paid by the Company to its directors cluring the year is in accordance with the

provisions of section L97 of the Act.

For R Kothari & Co LLP
Accountants

Firm :3070698/8300266

S{
,

C.A. Chandra Soni
Partner

Membership No.: 057620

Place: Kolkata
Date:27thMay 2025

UDIN: 25057 620B}4HZ G 04880
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,ANNEXURE A'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure A referred under the heading "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements "of
our report of even date to the financial statements of BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD for the year ended

March 37,2025, we report that:

(i) (u) (A) The Company has maintained proper recorcls showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Propertr.,, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-
pro gress, investment properties.

(B) The Company does not have any rntar-rgible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause

a(i)(a)@) of the order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Property, plant, and

equipment have been physicaliy yerified by the management at reasonable intervals and no

material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(.) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties disciosed

in the financial statements included in Propertv, Plant and Equipment as on the balance sheet

date are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both

during the year.

(e) In our opinion and according to the in{ormation and explanation given to us, the company

does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any

benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 19BB and Rules made

there under.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable

intervals. In our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verjfication by the management

is appropriate having regard to size of the Company and the nature of its operations. Anv
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of ilventory were not noticed.

(b) According to the information & explanations given to us during the year, the company has

been sancdoned a working capital limit in excess of five crole rupees, in aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; the quarterly returns

or statements filed by the company with such banks and financial institutions are in
agreement with books of accounts of the companY.

(ii| According to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our examinations of

the records of the Company, during the year, the Company hag not made investment in ,or
provided any guarantee or granted an-y loans or advances in the nahlre of loans,

secured/unsecured, to companies/firrns/Limitecl Liability Partnerships/other parties, Hence,

reporting under Para 3 clause (iii) (a) to (f) is not applicable

(i") In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Companv has

not granted any loary made investments or provided any guarantees or security to any person

specifiecl unci.er section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has not given any loans

,s.l e U
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and guarantees or provided any security in connection with a loar9 and make invesfinents

within the meaning of Section L86 of Companies Act, 2013. F{ence reporting of other

information under Para 3 clause (iv) of the said Order is not applicable to the company.

(") According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the books of accoun! the company has not accepted any deposits from the public and there is

no amounts which are deemed to be deposits and cot slquentlY, the directives issued by the

Reserve Bank of India and provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,

2015 with regard to the deposits are not applicable to the company.

(ri) The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (L) of

Section 1.48 of the Companie s Act 2013, in respect of the activities carried on by the Company.

We have broadly reviJwed the books of account maintained by the company in respect of

products where maintenance of cogt records has been prescribed and 
_are 

of the opinion that

prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. We have not however

made a detailed examination of such records with a view to determine whether they are

accurate and complete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the books of accoun! the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues

including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax

and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authority and no undisputed ar-nounts in

respect of the above was in arrears as at March 91,,2025 for a period of more than six months

from the date they become PaYable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the CompaLny

examineJby or, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Central Sales Tax,

West Bengi Value Added Tax and Excise Duty on account of dispute; except the following :-
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

books of accognts and other records, the company does not have any transactions unrecorded in

the books of account and which were srlrrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments
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under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence reporting of other in{ormation under Paragraph 3 clause

(viii) of the said Order is not required.

(ir) (a) Based on our Audit procedure and on the hformation and explanation given bv the

management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues

to any Financial Institution and Banks. Hence reporting of information under Paragraph 3

clause (ix) (a) of the said Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

other recorcls, the company has not been declared as a wiliful defaulter by any bank or

financial institutions or other lender. Hence reporting of information under Para 3 of ctrause

(ix) (b) of the said Order is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our exarnination of the

financial statements of the Company,rwe report that the company has taken term loan during the

year and in our opinion, term loan availed by the company were applied by the company during

the year for the purPoses for which the loans were obtained.

(ci) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raisecl on short-

term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the

Company.

(e) According to the in{ormation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

financial statements of the Company, u.e report that the company has not taken any fund from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or

joint ventures, as defined in the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any

subsidiaries, associates or joint venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended 31st March

2025. Hence reporting of information under para 3 clause (ix) (e) of the said Order is not

applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we

report thit the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in

its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. The Company does not hold any

investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint venture (as defined in the Act) during the year

ended 31st March 2025. Hence, reporting of other information under para 3 clause (ir) (0 of the

said Order is not applicable.

(") (u) Based upon the audit procedures performed ancl the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further

public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence reporting of information

under Para 3 clause (x) (u) of the said Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the inJormation and explanations given to us and bqsed on our examination of

the records, the company has not made any preferential allotrnent or private placement of shares

or fu1ly or partly convertible clebentures (fullv, partially or optionally convertible) during the

y"ur. ih"refore, reporting of information uncler clause 3 (x) (b) of the said Order is not

applicable.
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(*i) (u) Based upon the audit procedures performecl and the information and explanations

given by the management, the company has neithel committed any fraud nor has any fraud on

the company been noticed or reported during the vear'

(b) According to the informafion and explanations given by the management, no report under

section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the

Central Government.

(c) There has been no instance of whistle blon er compiaints received by the Company during the

year under audit.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information ancl explanations given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting of information under clause 3 (xii) (a) to (c) of the said

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Based upon the audit procedures performed ancl the inJormation and explanations given by the

management, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sectionlTT and188
of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion the company has an internal Audit commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit report for the year under audit, issued to the

company till date in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(*r) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or

persons connected with him. Accorclingl|, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given try the

management, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 iA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934.

b) Based upon the audit procedures performed ancl the information and explanations given by

the management, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing

Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India

as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

c) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the Company is a not a Core Investrnent Company (CIC) as defined in the

regulitions made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3 Clause (xvi)

(c) of the Orcler is not applicable to the Companv.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the

Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,

2016) does not have any core investment companv.

I
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(xvii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the

immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, there has not been any resignation of the stafutory auditors of the

company during the year.

(*ir) According to the inJormation and explanations given to us and on the basis of financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates of realizattons of financial assets and payment of the financial

liiblliiies, othei information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the

Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to belief that

arry material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is not capable

of meeting its liabilities existing at t{re date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not €m assurance as to the future viability of the company. We

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we

neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of

one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the comPany as and when they fa11

due.

(xx) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the Company is not required to transfer any amount to any fund specified in
Schedule VII and sub-section (5) of Section L35 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence,Patagtaph3
Clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the

company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial statements. Hence, Paragraph 3

clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For R.Kothari & Co LLP
Accountants

Firm N : 3070698/E300266

v
V

C.A. Chandra Soni
Partner*

Place: Kolkata
Date:27thMay 2025
UDIN: 25057 62OBMHZG 04880
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors'Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2OL3 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BALLY IUTE COMPANY
LTD ("the Company") as of 31"t March, 2025 rn conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsiblb for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient ionduct of its
business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial informatiorL as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assnrance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such conkols operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materigl weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmen! including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal fiirancial controls system over financial reporting.



Continuation Sheet

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurzmce regarding the reliability of financial i"portirrg and the p."p*rtior, of fLancial
statements for external purposes in accordance with g"r,uiully accepted aJcounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over fimncial reporting includes-those polici"" Ini proiedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records tha! in reasonaLle detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Co*pu.y; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention o, tl-"ly detection of unautho rire} aiqursitioru
use/ or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of fnternal FinanciEl Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements die to
:.rror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to fufure p"riodr are subject io the risk that the internal
financial conkol over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedur", -uy deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
systems over financial reporting and such internal controls over finincial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31't march 2025, based on the internal controls over financial ieporting^ criteria
established by the comPany considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
guidance note on audit of internal financial controls orr", ?ir,ur,.ial reporting issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India.

For R. Kothari & Co LLP
Accountants

Firm o.z 3070698/8300266

"{v

C.A. Chandra Soni
Partner

Place: Kolkata
Date:27tnN4ay 2025
UDIN: 25057 620BMHZG 04880

Membership No.: 057620
*
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 31st March 2024As at 31st March 2025Note NoParticulars

1.,290.77

10,046.65

'r,290.77

10,528.78

3,864.79

388.03

4,229.64

459.97

9,01 1.84

16.82

971..11

.1.,169.85

143.50

71.,337.42

4,252.82

11.,31,3.41.

11,81 9.55

4,689.61

1,0,763.25

't,715.02

L,094.90

96.22

7,807.43

49.68

26,9t3.6527,272.41

1.1,'r25.68

1.00

602.90

12,277.00

1.00

58.56 11,729.58

15,174.07

1.2,274.30

1,948.31

279.71

198.10

173.64

11,705.37

2,226.20

287.47

172.58

544.23 14,935 85

1.2,336.56

26,903.6527,272.4t

5

6

7

8

4

9

2

3

10

11

't2

13

1.1

15

L6

EQgIrY ANB_IIAB_MrIII
9berebplded-EErds

(a) Sharc Capital

(b) Reserves & Surplus

Ns!:ecssnlllebilitlgs-
(a) Long-1'ermBorrowings

(b) Delerrerl Tax Liabilities (Net)

tll Current I iabilities
(a) Short- lerm Rorrowings

(b) Trade Payables

i) 1'otal Outstanding dues of Micro and Small

Enterprisos
ii) Total Outstandrng dues of Trade Payables

Other than Mrcro and Small Entcrprises

(c) Othcr Current Liabilities

(ci) Short-fermProvisions
Total

Non-Current Assets

Propcrty Plant & Equiprnent & Intangible

Assets

(i) Property Plant & Equipnent

(ii) Capital Work-in-Progress

(b) Non-Current Investmcnts

(c) I-.ong 1'eun Loans & Advauce

Current Assets

(a) Inventorrcs

(b) Trade Receivables

(c) Cash & Cash Equivalents

(d) Sholt-1'errn Loans and At'lvtrnces

(e) Othcr Cuuent Assets
'Iotal

I.

(1)

II,

0)

(2)

ASSETS

(2)

(u)

Significant Accounting Policies and accompanying note

are integral part of these Financial Statements l'-44

t'i':'!r':

FOR & ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR

(Sanjay Kumar Agarwal)

QzB rn {t}Y "5\o 25

v

Soni

:Kolkati:

\Cr-r.a+
S

/.."4 SLov,^^
A tr-r"

&General Manager (F&A) Secretary DIN 00526787
OfficerFinancial

=r"

per our Report of this date anruexed

R Kothari & Co LLP

MNo,
CA

(S.s. Singh)

DIRECTOR

DIN - 06763514

(R.P Sharma)

Manager

(Ajit Kumar ]ain)
DIRECTOR

I

(
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CIN : L51909W81982PLC035245

IIWEI4NDIOS_QJS]fIT_E-LEAB-E.N-DIDj1qT}!ABE}I-2.A25
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Note No
For the year

ended 31st March,
2025

For the year
ended 31st March

2024

I

II

III

IV

VI

VII

]V

X

XI

XII

INCOME:
Revenue fiom Operahons

Other Income

TOTAL TNCOME (r+rr)

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumcd
Purchase of Stock-rn-hrade

Change in ir-rventolies of finisl-red goods,

work-in-progress and Stock-in-Tradc

Employee benefits expense

Finarrce costs

Depreclation and arnortisation expense

Other expenses

I

TOTAL EXPENSES

Profit/(Loss) Before exceptional and

extraordinary items and tax ( III - IV)
Exceptional Items

Profit/(Loss) Before extraordinary items and tax (V- VI)
Extraordinary Items

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (VII - VIII)
Tax Expense :

(L) - Current Tax

(2) - Deferred Tax

(3) - I.Tax for Earlier Year's

Total TaxExpense

Profit/(Loss)for the period from continuing operations (IX - X)

Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations

Profit for the period (XI + XII)

Ear-ings ner Equiw Share (Face Value Rs.10/- each) (In Rg)

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

17

18

19

20

21.

22

9

23

28,989.1.6

28.32

34,009.54

6.16

29,017.48 34,016.00

1.6,424.39

248.83

5,343.42

1,217.92

549.87

1,582.66

20,602.00

(e38 77)

6,760.75

918.24

521.48

5,363.11

28,367.03 33,260.1.8

650.45 7i5 82

650.45 755.82

650.45

96.22

71.94

0.16

755.82

143.50

51.40

0.92

1.68.32

482.13

195.83

559.99

482.13 559.99

3.74

3.74 1.34

Significant Accounting Policies and accompanying notes

are integral part of these Financial Statements 1-414

As per our Report of this date

For R & Co LLP nt FOR & ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR

Accountants

'n rJfus,,,t,fi-/
aa,-,v

,q
*
o

+,

v *

CA Chandra Soni
t\ '&t."1sL,*^

(R.P Sharma)

Manager

BJ
M No. 057520

Partner
PIace :Kolkata

Dated: |J*fnR\ 2 CI'2 S

(Sanjay Kumar Agarwal)

General Manager (F&A),
Secretary & Chief Financial

Officer

(Ajit Kumar Jain)
DIRECTOR

DIN - 00525787

(s.S. Singh)

DIRECTOR

DIN - 06763614

rff1lif



B LTD
clN : -EI_2Q9Y/E19.82P1! [ls_W-

_eASlI_E!o!-v_9f arEMEl[L_LaB,UIEiylAB_ENDED_31srMARCH2025
(Rs. ln Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 31st

Mach,2025
For the yea ended 31st

Much 2024

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX & EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS.

Adjustments For:

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

Interest lncome

Profit on sale of Fixed Asset

Interest & Finance Charges

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Adjustments lor:
(lncreme)/Decrease in Trade Receivables

(lncrease) /Decrease in Inventories

hrcrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilties

(hrcrease)/Decrease in Long'1'erm Loans And Advmces

(lncrease)/Decrease in Short 'Ierm Loans And Advances

(lncrease)/Decrease in other Current Assets

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Tern'r Provision 
t

CASH GENERATED FORM OPERATIONS

Direct taxes paid
CASH FLOW BEFORE EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS

EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS

NET CASII FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES AFTER EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Puchase of Property, Plant and EquiPment.

Proceeds h'om Sale of Property, Plant and Iquipment.
Interest received

NET CASH INFLOry(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment & Proceeds from borrowings

Payment of Interest & Finance Charges

NET CASH INTLOry(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

Cash and Casir Equivalents as at the conmrencemcnt of the yeal'

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

650.45

il9.81
(22.3\

(3.07)

L,2L7.92

755.82

524.48

(4.78)

948.24

2,392.73

(277.8e)

568.91

(7 4.94)

544.3,1

25.52

(70.5e)

(47.28)

2,223.76

118.15

(31s.01)

127.81

3,837.30

(e6.3n

2,154.71-

1744.42)

3,740.93 2,01,0.29

3,740.93 2,010.29

(1,848.14)

150.08

22.37

(877.43)

10.54

4.78

(-t,675.69\ (862.11)

(83e.s6)

(1,217.92)

t7 qa\

(e18.24)

(2,057.48) (es6.24)

7.76

279.7L

191.94

87.77

287.47 279.7L

Signi-ficant Accourting Policies and accompanying note

are integral part of these Finmcial Statements 1-44

Iigurc in brackets represent outflows.

This cash flow statement has been prepared in Accordance with AS - 3 " Cashflow Statements"

Cash and Cash Consists Of

With Banks

In Current Accounts with Scheduie Bank 9.89 0.87

Cash in hand 6.91 1.4.43

OTHER BANK BALANCES

Fixed Deposit with Bank (Maturity less than 12 months) (Margin against BG/LC) 270.67 264.41,

,{ffi1T}14otul 287.47 279.7L

Fc)R .([ c)N BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR

.} (C----

(Sanjay Kumar
Sra-'

(Ajitkumr.Jain) (S.S. Singh)

For

CA
M No.

& Co LLP

Soni

*
f,

h.^'&l^,qt*^,
SfuntnJn tv
€

Partner
Place :Kolkata

uut"a, 2TitrnRV 2O2(

(R.P Sharma)
Manager General Manager (F&A) ,

Secretary & Chief Financial
Officer

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN - 00526787 DIN - 0676351{

31st March 2025 31st March 2024Particulffi



Bally ]ute ComPanY Ltd
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31't March, 2025

Ill.Prope"rt-v, Plant & Equipnqent :

Property, plant & Equipment represent a significant proportion of the assets of the

Company. Irroperty, Plant & Equipment are stated at their original cost less accumulated

depreciation / amortisation. The Cost includes the purchase cost including import duties

and non-refundable taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing an Property, Plant

& Equipment to the Location and Conditions of its intended use. Capital work in progress is

stated at cost. Cost comprises of expenditure incurred in respect of the asset under

development and includes any attributable/ allocable cost and other incidental expenses'

IV.Depreciation:
Depreciation on property, Plant & Equipment is determined using the Straight Line Method

on pro-rata basis based on the useful life of the Property, Plant & Equipment as prescribed

under Schedule II of the Companles Act, 2013, except for the plant & machinery' The

management estimates the useful life for Plant & Machinery to 25 years based upon the

evaluation carried by the technical valuer'

V.Inventories:
Inventory of the Company have been valued as follows

a)

b)

c)

d)

Raw Material

Work In Progress

Stores & Spares

Finished Goods

At cost.

At estimated cost.

At weighted average cost.

At lower of cost or net realisable value

vI'Foreign Curreqclz Transactions

a) InitialRecognition:

Foreign curency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying

exchange rate to the foreign curlency amount at the date of the transaction;

b) Foreign Exchange Differenceg:

Exchange Differences arising on the date of settlement of monetary items are recognised

as income or exPense on the date of settlement. However, the resulted gain or loss

relating to long term monetary item for financing acquisition of depreciable capital

assets, is adjusted to the acquisition cost of such assets and depreciated over its

remaining useful life.

;, r.
1l *

-Ct



Bally ]ute ComPanY Ltd

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March' 2025'

c) Conyersioni

prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet'

Vll.Revenue Recognition:

0 Sale of froduct

a)AllExportSalesinforeigncurlencyarerecordedattheratesofexchangeprevailingon
the dates when the relevant trans?ctions take place;

ii) Pividend and Interest Incor'ne

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the closing of the yeart are converted

into the reporting .rrr"r,.y of the entity i." lxn at the appropriate rates of exchange

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is

established which generally"coincide as and when received'

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount

Outstanding and the rate applicable

iii) Insurance Claim

TheCompanyrecogniseinsuranceclaimswhentherecoverabilitytotheclaimis
established with a reasonable certainty which generally coincide as and when received'

iv) Export Incentive

The ComPanY has recognised Income from Draw Back Duty on Export on Accrual Basis

Vlll.Government Grants

Govemment Grants given for acquisition of specific fixed assets are deducted from the

grossvalueofthe,elevantfixedassetsoncompletionoftheworksinarrivingatthebook
value.

GrantsreceivedfromGovernmentorotherauthoritiestowardsrevenuearerecognized
over the period in which the related costs are incurred and are deducted from the related

exPenses

IX.Investment

Investment is treated as Non Current assets & stated at cost' Provision for diminution in the

value of long term investrnent is made only if such a decline is other than temporary nature

in the oPinion of the management'



Bally ]ute ComPanY Ltd

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March' 2025

X.Eorrowing Qost

Borrowing costs that are atkibutable to the acquisition or construction of quali{zing assets

are capitali zed. aspart of the cost of such urrutr. A qualifiiing asset is one that necessarily

takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use' A11 other borrowing costs are

charged to revenue.

Xi.Retirement Benefits

a)ContributionstoProvidentFundareaccountedforonaccrualbasis.

b) Liability in respect of Gratuity is/being provided on cash basis'

c) Liability in respect to leave encashment is being accounted for on accrual basis as

calculated bY the Management'

XII.Contingent Liability

Contingent Liabilities are not provided for but disclosed by way of notes to the account'

OnXIII.

Current tax is determined on the basis of the amount of tax payable on taxable income for

the year. Deferred tax is calculated at current statutory income tax rate and is recognized on

timing differences between taxable income & accounting income that originate in one period

and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods' Deferred tax assets' subiect

to consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried forward only to the extent that

there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against

which such deferred tax assets can be realized'

XlV.Provisions & Contingencies:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when

thereisapresentobligationasaresultofpasteventsanditisprobablethattherewillbean
outflow of resources.

740 A71
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Bally ]ute CompanY Ltd
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31* March, 2025.

XV.Ea{ningr EcLEheIg

a) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the year

attributable to Equity shareholders of the comPany by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year.

b) nor the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net Profit or Loss for the

year attributable to the equity shareholders and weighted average number of share

outstanding adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares (if Any).

I



Bally )ute ComPanY Ltd
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31't March, 2025'

I
I

XV. E arlir-rgq.-PglQ haIg

a) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the year

athibutable to Equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year'

b) fo, the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net Profit or Loss for the

year attributable to the equity shareholders and weighted average number of share

outstanding adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares (if Any)'

/



BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD

ended 31 st March, 2025to the Financial Statement for the
(Rs.in

The reconciliation oJ the nmrber oi shares outstmding at the beglming md at the end of the reporting period

SHARE CAPITAL

1.,290.771,29A.77

L,290.77

Particulars

1.,290.77

As at 31st March As at 31st March

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each Fully Paid Up

20242025

1,300.00

1,300.00

1,300.00

1,300.00

L,290.77

L,290.77

1,290.77

7,290.77

As at 31st March, 2024As at 31st March 2025

ValueNo. of SharesValueNo. of Shares

Year 1,30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)

Equity Shares oI Rs 10/- eacll

Share Capital

(Previous Year 1,29,07,659 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)

Paid up Capital :

\eat1,29,A7,659 Equitv Shares o{ Rs 10/- eac}r)

& subscribed Capital

',659 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- eaclr

1,290.771.2,907,6591,290.7712,907,659

Issued, Subscribed md fuI1'paid up Equitv

shares outstanding at the begirrntrg of the year

Add : Shares issued during the vear

1.,290.7712,907,6597,290.7712,907,659

Issued, Subscribed md fuly paid up Equitv

shares outstanding at tire end of the year

Terms/Ttights attached to Shares

The companl,has one class of equity shaes having a par value of Rs 10/- per share.Each Equity shareholder is eligible

Ior one vote per share held md having same rights as to tlividend.In the event of liquidation of the Compmv,the equitv 
I

shareholclers will be entitled to receive remaining asseis o{ ihe company, a{ter distribution o{ all preferential alromts

The distribution u.ill be in proportion to the numbel of equitv shares held by the shareholders.

'Ihe Dctails of Shareholders hold.ing more than 5% shares in the Compmy md their numbers are as follows:

NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS % HeldNo. of Shares

A,s on31/03/2025 As on31/03/2024

No. of Shres "1, Held

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

s1.
No.

Name of Shareholders No. of shares
o/o of

Total Shares
No. of Shares "/" of

Total Shares

Yo change
during the

yed

l Ambica Markets Ltd. 4,793,O73 37.1.3% 4,793,O73

2 Tie lrd ^t,746,OOO 7353% 7,746,OOO 1353%

3 Mills Ltd 47,542 a 37% 47,542 0.37%

4 Services & Secudties Ltd 266,500 2.061" 266,500 2.06%

5 Abhishek Kumar Kankaria 512,900 3.97% 512,900 3.97%

6 kumar Kankaria 124,109 o.997" 128,109 o.99%

7 View Firrancial Serviccs Ltd. 1,097,533 850% 1,O97,533 8.50 %

8 fextile Ltd. 2,500 0.02% 2,500 o.o2%

9 Kshi tiz Merchandise Ltd. 1,686,000 r3 06% 1,686,000 73.06%

10 Onr towers Privatc Lilnited 2,500 a.a2% 2,500 o.o2%

11 Satbir:har Ltd 1,684,500 13 05% 1,684,500 13.05%

12 Score Inforlrlation Technologies Ltd. 135,416 1 05% 135,41,6 1.05%

13 Wellu'orth Vanijya Pvt. Ltd. 2,500 o 02% 2,500 o.o2%

14 Ku nrar Kankaria 573,443 573,483 4.44%

15 Fincoil Pvt Ltd 204,000 204,OO0

12,aA2,556.OO 99.Aar/o 12,8a2,556.OO 99.aao/o

The details of the shreholdings of the prornoter are as lollou's:-

Satbichar Ltd

37 1,3

13.53

8.50

13.06

:13.05

4,793,473

L,746,000

1_,A97,533

1,686,000

1,684,500

37.13

13.53

8.50

13.06

13.05

4,793,073

L,746,000

1,097,533

1,586,000

1,684,500

Anbica Capital Markets Ltd

Aspectivc f ie Up I-td

Gul.lvierv Fitrarrcial Sen ic, s LrJ

Kshitiz Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.

lr'j..i rl*.jr.

/
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otes to the Financial Statement for the ended 2025
(Rs.in Lakhs

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

As at 31st March
2025

Deductions
during the

year

Additions/ Created
during the year

As at 31st March
2024Particulars

L70.76

(770.76)

557.58

5,951.97

(s,961,.971

3,838.47

(ss7

482.13

(sse.ee)

170.76

07a,76)

557.58

(ss7.s8)

5,96L.97

(5,961.97)

3,356.34

(2,796.35)

Reserves

Premium

Reserves

& Loss.

/ (Deficit) tr the Statement of

10,528.78482.131,0,046.65Total

\ear:2023-24 (sse.ee)(9,486.65)

of Last Financial Yearin brackets reflects the

As at 31st

March,2024
As at 31st
March,2025Particulars

2,088.13

118.28

30./ J

qqR q?

(653.27)

104.58

50.79

(6s7.00)

1,,486.33

60.1.6

2,148.71)7,014.86

999.00

777.00

(577.78)

3,755.56

7.00

3,864.794,229.54

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

4. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Loan

a) Canara Bank Term Loan

(Refer Note 4A)

b) Vehicle Loan

(Refer Note 4A )

c) Forklifter Loan

(Refer Note 4A )

d) Equipment Loan

(Refer Note 4A )

Loan from LIC (Secured against the Key Man Policy of Key Managerial Personnel)

Less: Current matuirities of long term borrowings (Refet N ote 4A)

Unsecured Loan

a) ICICI Bank Telnl Loan (Refet N ote 4A)

b) Loan from Related Parties

c) Loan from Other Parties

Less: Current matuirities of long term borrowings of Icici Bank term Loan (ReferNote 4A)

BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD

I
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(Rs.in Lakhs)
ended 31st 2025

BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD

to the Financial Statement for the
As at 31st

March,2024
As at 31st

March,2025
Particulars

7,043.57

a)),L/

268.00

1,047 .00

6,546.65

1,231.78

25.00

1.00
.847, .43

16.82

971.41
49.68

L,715.02
988.22.70

Working Capital facility flom Scheduled Bank (Canara Bank)

(i) Primary: Secured by hypothecatron of Current assets viz Raw Materials'

Work-in-Progless, Stores t Sp"-'=t i"rrri- Finished goods' Finished goods and Book debts'

(ii) Collateral: Secured bY:-

1a) Fxistirrg PlanI arrd Machinr't1' '

(b)EMi'oflarrdarrdbrrildinginthclranreofM/sl3allyJuteComPanvi-td.(I)eedno.6625Mcasuring
17.005 Acres).

(iii) Personal Guarantec of Shri Alvanti Kumar Kankaria'

Culrent Maturities of Long-terrn Debt (Refer Note No'44)

6. TRADE PAYABLE

Dues to Micro & Small Enterprise (Refer Note No 30)

Others

CURRENT LIABILITIES

5.SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Loans

Unsecured Loan

Loan from Related Parties

Loan from Other Parties

As at 31'03.2025
.bIesTrade

otal
More than 3

earrs1 -2 YearLess than 1 49.68Particulars
49.68 a,7a5.02MSME 24.181.38't,689.46

Others
d.,"t MSME

1,764dues - Others1V 24.18.38671,

As at 31.03.2024
Trade More than 3

;lf s
L -zYear '1.6.82Particulars

6.82
971.4LMSMtr

22.45948.96Others
dues - MSME

Othersduested
Total As at 31st

March,2024
As at 31st

March,2025
Particulars

181.70

10.05

6.50

48.02

1,2.57

20.31

115.62

888.88

9.50

1,169.85

143.50

96.22

7. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings

Interest Accruetl but not due on Borrowings

Advance from Customer

Other PaYables

Statutory Dues

Liabilities for ExPenses

Creditors For Frxed Assets

8. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Income Tax &

!t

Total
2-3 yearsLess than 1 Year

988.22
22.45965-78

67.65

903 94

96.22
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BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD
(Rs.in Lakhs)

otes to the Financial Statement for the ended 31st March, 2025

As at 31st

March 2024
As at 31st

March 2025Particulars

10. NON.CURRENT INVESTMENTS

on Trade Investment U d

Name of the ComPanYFace value

Share
Number

AKK Mercantile Pvt. Ltd.

Eq Shares)Rs 10
10,000

(1
1.001.00

1.001.00

602.9058.56

602.9058.56

3,696.70

L,9112.46

6,426.44

238.70

3,408.32

1,953.97

6,136.10

206.98

12,274.3077,705.37

1.,948.312,226.20

7,948.31.2,226.20

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Capital Advance (Refer Note No. 40)

Raw Materials ( At Cost )

Work-in-progress (At Estimated Cost)

FinishedGoods(AtCostorNetrealizablevalueu,hicheverislower)

Stoles & Spares (At Weigl-rted Average Cost)

ASSETS

in brackets reflects the figures of Last Financial Year

13. TRADE RECETVABLES

Unsecured (Considered Good)

Trade Receivables

As at 31.03,2025
Trade Receivables

Total

More than 3

yearsyears1 -2 Year

months - 1Less than 6

months

Trade Receivable
2,226.20200.570.791A.872,013,- Considered Good

- Consrdered Doubtful

Trade Receivable

Considered Good

Consrdered Doubtful
2,D6.20200.570.7910.87

As at 31,03.2024
Trade Receivables

Total

than 3

2-31. -Z\exmonths - 1

than 6

Trade Receivable
1,948.31

0.79 200.577,746.95Considered Good

- Considered Doubtful

Trade Receivable

Considered Good

Considered Doubtful

0.79 200.571,745.95

U

./ un!l!:, : ""'" 
* 'il

(As takeryvalued and certified by the Management)



otes to the Financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (Rs.in Lakhs)
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD

(Rs.in Lakhs)

As at 31st

March 2024
As at 3l,st
March 2025Particulars

264.41

0.87

14.43

270.67

9.89

6.9-1,

279.71.287.47

85.41

1.6.28

14.57

81.84

86.91,

14.06

19.88

51..73

198.10172.58

17.23

1,51.02

235.56

69 84

17.23

124.25

206.30

L46.68

49.77

473.64

In Current Accounts with Schedule Bank

Cash in hand

OTHER BANK BALANCES

Fixed Deposit with Bank (Maturity less than 12 months)

(Margin against BG/LC)

SHORTTERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 
I

(Unsecured, Considered good)

Advances Recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Advances to EmPloYees

Advances to SuPPliers

Advances to Others

I Deposits

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits/Balances with statutory authorities

Advance Income Tax ( Including Tax deducted at source)

Balance with Government authorities

Subsidy Receivable fron-r National Jute Board (Refer Note 41)

Other Current Assets

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

With Banks

&{ f', I

I

r

I

544.23



BALLY JUTE COMPANY L
(Rs.ur Lakhs)

ended 31st March, 2025
otes to the Financial Statement for the

TD

For the year ended

31st March 2024
For the year ended

31st March 2025Particulars

33,818.70

183.55

3.99

3.29

28,57L.14

104.25

7.54

6.23

34,009.5428,989:1,6

4.78

1.68

22.37

2.88

3.07

6.4628.32

4,JZJ./O

20,055.20
3,696.70

16,236.66

(100.65)

20,684.2616,424.39

20,602.00'l,.6,424.39

7,912.46

6,126.14

1,953.97

6,736.7{)

8,338.908,090.07

1,885.83

5,)14.3/

L,912.46

6,426.41

7,400.208,338.90

248.83

6,057.86

461.74

247.15

4,738.96

421.02

183.44

6,760.755,343.42

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sales of Jute Goods

i.) Dornestic

ii.) ExPot't

Sale of ImPort Licence

Duty Drawback on ExPolt

Revenue from oPerations (Net)

OTHER INCOME

Interest Incornc !

Rent Income

Profit on sale of Property Plant ancl Equiptnent

9. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening stock
Purchases

Sale o{ Raw iute
Closing Stock (Refer Note No.11)

Adcl :-

Less :

Less :

Less : Insurance Clairl

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF

GOODS WORK-IN.PROGRESS

STOCK-IN.TRADE

Closing Stock in Progress

Closing Stock - Finished Cloods

Opening Stock in Progess

Opening Stock - Finished Goods

(Increase)/ Decrease in Stocks

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries,Wages, Allowances & Bonus

Contribution to Provident & Other fund

Staff Welfare ExPenses



BATLY IUTE COMPANY LTD
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March. 2025 (Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2025

For the year ended
31st March 2024

1 ))? 72,

(s.81)

949.12

(0.88)

1.,217.92 948.24

978.1,2

918.50

1,,040.06

72.70

23.79

98.95

1,2.27

39.71

13.27

3.75

1.00

1,,381.14

1,658.63

1,308.82

1,1.14.85

136.78

28.65

70.18

75.70

67.35

11.50

.1./a

i.00

916.20

4,582.66 5,363.41,

700 071
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Bally ]ute Company Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March,2025.

Additional Notes to Financial Statements

25. Contingent Liability not provided in respect of

i. Bank Guarantee given by the Company's Bankers amounting to Rs.347.91 Lakhs-
(Previous year Rs.347.91 Lakhs).

Claim not acknowledged by the Company for VAT and Sales tax demand for various

financial year under appeal Rs. 165.86 Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 1,65.86 Lakhs).

iii. The Company paid titl date Rs 9.41 Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 9.4L Lakhs) for liability of Rs.9.41

Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 9.4L Lakhs) against Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, matter is pending

under appeal with the appellato Authority.

iv. The Company paid till date an Advance of Rs 7.82 Lakhs (P.Y Rs 7.82 Lakhs) against

the demand raised by E.S.I.C of Rs.38.46 Lakhs (Rs.38.46 Lakhs) for which the

Company made an appeal.

Liability for Gratuity has been determined on the basis of Actuarial valuation as per

AS-15 (revised) : "Employee benefits" as on 31.03.2025 of Rs. 1,718.68 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs.

1",592.96 Lakhs). The same willbe accounted for as and when paid.

27. Auditors Remuneration consists of:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

28. In the opinion of the Management, all the assets other than Property plant and Equipment
and Non-Current Investments have a value on realization in the ordinary course of

business, at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

Provision for depreciation and all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of what is
required.

29. The Company is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain trade payables,

other payables, trade receivables, other receivables and advances. The Management does

not expect any material difference affecting the current year's financial statements due to

the same.

30. A Sum of Rs. 49.68 Lakhs (P.Y 16.82 Lakhs) is payable to Micro & Small Enterprises which
are outstanding as on 31st March, 2025. such parties that have been identified on the basis

of information available with the Company. The disclosures as required under the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ate as under:

3.75Statutory Audit Fees

1.001.00Tax Audit Fees

4.75 4.75Total

Fartit lxs Yearfl24;25 Vear 2023,=24



Bally Jute Company Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t March, 2025.

31. The Company has decided voluntarl, delisting of equity shares of the company from
Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd., as per the resolution passed in the Board Meeting held on

{Jtrr fu{316fi, 2020. Accordingly, the company has already applied for its delisting under the

SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2009 on 6ft August, 2020. Necessary approval
is pending to be received from SEBL Since the company is under process of delisting hence

financial statement has not been prepared as per the requirement of ind-AS. The impact of
the same on the reported financials remains unascertained.

32. SEGMENT REPORTING

The entire operation of the Company relates to only one segment i.e. Jute Goods. As

such there is no separate reportable segment as defined under Accounting Standard-17
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Segment Reporting.

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE:

Related party Disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the

Accounting Standard 18 on "Related Party Disclosures" are given below:-

A) List of Related Parties :

1b.$24q.fi8,l

Pr:incipal ir.firfturtt *rtr{ htter-est c{tte tu

Ettppliers Llnrder h{5h'fEE Act *nd
Reauun:ng L.npait{

1

Interesl and ;rn1, p.rynr.eut nmde t*
snttptrier s Lreym*d appoi:rte r.1 rt"rt'e ( ur:cler

Serhit:r: .tr6 cd the Il.:t5ir,IED Att
Irrter e s t rlL.ct"lre d ilnd r"euror.i*il"tg ru"rpaid"f,.

'.r

4 XnteEest !'eflrlr-itting dtie .rnu{. gr"ryatrtre t*.der
seE-tion 711 nf the irct

A) Company Having Significant Influence Ambica Capital Markets Ltd

B) Enterprise where the company has
significant influence

Bally Jute Mills Employee's Provident
Fund Trust

51.Nn Farti+:er.lars
s at 3i[st..

.. [arcXr2{}35

A.s at 3:l-st

S'Iarch 1024



Bally Jute Company Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31.t March, 2025.

C) Key Managerial Personnel

I

Mr. Rabi Prakash Sharma
(Manager)

(appointed w.e.f 06th December 2024

Mr. Shashi Prakash Purohit
(Former Manager)

Resigned On 29th November 2024

Mr. S.K. Agarwal
(General Manager F&A, Secretary &

c.F.o)

Mr. M.R Yagnik
(Excecutive director)

B) During the year following transactions have been carried out with the related parties:

Loan Taken
Rs 725 lakhs

(P Y: 335laklis)

Loan Repaid
Rs 1,960laklu

p.Y: 860 Lakhs)1 Ambica Gpital Markets Limited
Company having signifi cant

influence

Interest paid
Rs 49.45laklu

(P.Y: 83 89 Laklu)

Rs 32 Laklm

(P Y: Rs 1267lak1ts)

2 Bally Jute Mi11s Employee's Provident Fund Trust
Enterprise where the company

has si gniflcant infl uence
P.F Loan

Rs. 0.27 Laklu

(P.Y Rs. 1.27 Laklu)

Rs. 34.19 Laklu

(P.Y : Rs. 34.47laktu)

J

Mr. Rabi PrakashSharma

(Manager)

(appointed w.e.f 06th December 2024

Key Managerial

Personnel
Remmuneration

Rs. 6 Laklu

(P.Y:Nil)

4

Mr. Shashi Prakash Puroht

(Former Manager)

Resigned On 29th November 2024

Key Managerial

Personnel
Remmuneration

Rs. 6.36laklu

f Y Rs. 18.6i laklu)

5
Mr. S.K Agarwal

(General Manager F&A, $cretary & C F.O)

Key Managerial

Personnel
Remmuneration

Rs 25.23 Laklu

(P,Y Rs. 23.83

Laklr)

6
MrMRYagmk

(Excecutive Director)

Key Managerial

I'ersonnel
Remmuneration

Rs 31.54 Laklu

(P.Y:29.35 Lakk)

Sl No.
Name Of The Related

j-rirLirlr P .j:li 
=

Nature Of

Relationship

Nature 0f.
:T:ranShcti0n

Transiction During

The Year

Balance Outstanding

As On 31st March 2025



Bally ]ute Company Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 2025.

34. EARNIN.G PER SHARE

Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the Profit after Tax, athibutable to the Equity
Share holders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding during the
year as below

35. pEFERRED TAXATTON

In view of Accounting Standards 22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income" issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India Deferred tax Liability for the year amounting
to Rs.71.94 Lakhs (P.Y 51.40 Lakhs) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit &
Loss.
The deferred Tax Assets & Liabitities comprise of tax effect of following timing
differences

10

Profit after Taxation (Rs. In Lakhs) 482.13 559.99

Weighted average no. of shares

- For Basic E.P.S 1,29,07,659 1,,29,07,659

- For Diluted E.P.S 1,29,07,659 1,29,07,659

Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.) 3.74 4.34

Diluted Earnings per Share (in Rs.) 3.74 4.34

Depreciation as per Income Tax Act 835.66 728.71

Depreciation as per Companies Act 549.81 524.47

Diff erential de preciation 285.85 204.24

Deferred Tax Liabilitv @ 25.168% 71.94 51.40

Opening Balance of Deferred Tax Liability 388.03 336.63

Add: Deferred Tax Liability 71,.94 51.40

Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Liability- 459.97 388.03

Fartitiilars
:]

6fi,t03h0r5 31i08.2024

Nominal Value per share (in Rs.) 10

iPar d I#
20r4r25

(Rs,in lakhs)

2023-24

(Rs in lakhs)



Bally Jute Company Ltd
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31"t March, 2025.

36. QUANTATIVE DETAIL (Rs. In Lakhs)

t.

Imported and Indigenous
Raw Material & Stores (including
Components & Spare parts)

consumed

Value of

I
Raw Material:

Imported
259.32 1.25%

Indigenous 76,424.39 1,00% 20,342.69 98.75%

TOTAL
16424.39 100% 20602.00 1000/n

Stores:

Imported

Indigenous 978.72 100% 1,658.63 700%

TOTAL 978.12 1000h 1658.63 100%

1I Earning in Foreign Currency

of goods calculated onExport
F.O.B. Basis 404.25 183.55

TOTAL 404.25 183.5s

111 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Import of Raw Jute 259.32

Travelling Expenses 41.07 86.1,2

Fair & Exhibition 0.35

Particulars
VaIue

2924-25
ffii4,,
aole-It



Bally jute Company Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31s March, 2025.

37. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure:

The Company has taken steps for hunger eradication in the local area, towards CSR

expenses. The details are as under:
In Lakhs

38. Goods & Service tax balances, as appearing in financial statements are subject to Reconciliation
and annual return.

39. During the year a sum of Rs. NTil (P.Y Rs. 981.50/- Lakhs) received on account of insurance

proceeds has been adjusted with expenses of insurance charges under the head of
miscellaneous expenses

40. Estimated amount of contracts remanning to be executed on Capital Advance and not
provided for is Rs. Nil (P.Y. Rs.Nil) including CST.

41. The Company's claim for Incentive under the INCENTIVE SCHEME FOR

ACQUISITiON OF PLANT & MACHINERY of National Jute Board (NlB) filed on 20.08.19

and 23.0L.2020 was approved by the NJB for Rs. 41.56 Lakhs and Rs. 110.08 Lakhs. Out of
this, a sum of Rs.4.96 Lakhs was received from NJB on 26/1,0/2021". However, the balance
of incentive of Rs. 1.46.68 Lakhs was withheld by the NIB and against which the company
filed a writ petitionbefore the Hon'ble Calcutta high court on 07/06/2022.The Hon'ble
court vide its order dated 1,6/L0/23 directed the NIB to release the incentives by
31,/12/2023. Against this the NJB preferred SLP before the Hon'ble Supreme court but the

same was dismissed onL4/11/2024by the court.

Now there being no other pending appeal and also vide order dated 1,6/05/25 of Calcutta
high court, NJB having agreed to make payment within a month of court order, a sum of Rs.

L46.68 Lakhs being the incentive receivable from NJB is provided in these accounts. This

being in the nature of Government Grants against specific assets, the entire incentive
amount has been deducted from the value of relevant fixed assets as per Accounting
Standard -12 relating to Government Grants Issued by ICAI

13.17 11,.331 Amount required to be spent by the company during
the year

11.50Amount of
Eradication.

expenditure incurred on Hunger 13.272

0.10 0.17J (Shortfall)/Excess at the end of [he year

Total of previous years shortfall4

Reason for shortfall NA NA5

Hunger Eradication6 Nature of CSR activities
Nil Nil7 Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR

expendifure as per relevant Accounting Standard :

Year ended 31.t
March 2025

Year ended 31.t
March 2024

SI
No.

Particulars



Bally |ute Company Ltd
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31"t March, 2025.

42. Additional Regulatory Information's: -

(a)No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for
holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Acf
1988 (45 of 19BB) and the rules made thereunder, the company for the financial
year 2024-25 or any of the previous years.

(b) The Company has any not entered into any transactions with companies
which are struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Acf 2013 during the
financial year ended on 31st March 2025.

I
(c) As for the year ended 31st March 2025, there are no pending Charges to be

registered with Roc beyond the statutory period and there are no pending
Satisfacfion of Charges to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(d)During the year Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Intermediary shall:

1.. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on beharf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

2. Provide any guarantee, securitlr or the like to or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

(e) During the year Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company sha[:

'1,. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or:

2. Provide any guarantee, securitlz or the like on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

{. {\l tr



Bally Jute Company Ltd
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31.t March, 2025.

(f) The Company has no such transaction which are not recorded in the books of

accounts during the year and also there are no such unrecorded income and

related assets related to earlier years which have been recorded in the books of

account during the Year.

(g) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual

Currency during the financial year 2024-25 or any of the previous years.

43. Figures are rounded off to the $upees in Lakhs and decimals thereof, unless otherwise

stated.

44. previous year figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever consider necessary to

conform to this year's classification

For R. Kothari & Co LLP
Accountants

FOR & OF BOARD

v
E

.Tr*,k fiY/
CA Kailash Soni fJ;&t,-,/

O\! a(la^e.-

=!t-.
t&-
w

M No. 057620

Partner
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Manager

Sanjay Kumar Ajit Kumar Jain
Director
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DirectorGeneral Manager (F&A),

Secretary & Chief
Finanacial officer DIN-00526787 DIN - 06763614

Place : Kolkata
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BAttY JUTE COMPANY tIilIITED
CIN : L51909W8 l982Pl-C0352.15

(An ISO900l :20 I 5, I 4001 :2004 & 1800 I :20 I 5 Com pany)
Regd. Offic & Mills : 5, Sree Charan Sarrni, Bally
Dist. Howrah, Pin-7ll 201, West Bengal. India

Phone : +91-33-261 1 2086, 2036, 5049, 505 1

Fax : +91-33-2611 8270

E-m ail : sanjay.agarwal@kankariagroup.com

To,

The Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 43'd Annual Report on the business
and operations of the company together with the Audited financiai statemenr on
standalone basis for the financial ygar encled 31st March 2025.

During the year under review, a brief brcak up of the financial performance of the
Company is given as under: :;

(Rs in Lacs)

7 t",t :/ t,l,t ,"y:it-j.

In order to conserve the resources of the company, the Board of Directors of the
Company have not recommended any dividend for the year ended 3lst March ,2025.

:4" ,:t1,i3:i ,4;;tlr:,1:/-i:/! ttr Lll,lt',/ w Jlzi;1:;/././l%fi" ltZi J:,,.Ull/.

\

Particulars .)l .',,r: ;t.J.t',- i.r <J,
',:j, 

7 " ?./r'ar ;:7,: 12*21

Ttsr l.he: "y*:.*r trniL.*:rJ

l:i 11 "' ?:"xrar c"tr"t'S*24r

Revenue from 28989.16 340A9.54

Profit before finance charges, Tnx, 2418.18 2228.54

Less: finance 1217.92 948.24

Profit before Tax, 1200.26 1280.30

Less 549.81 524.48

Net Profit before Taxation 650.45 755.82

Tax 168.32 195.83

after tax 482.t3 559.99



n

There was no Change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year

During the year 2024-25 under review, the company has achieved lower sales of
Rs.289.89 crores vis-a-vis sales of Rs. 340.09 crores during the corresponding previous
yeat 2023-24 and consequently earned lower profit before tax of Rs. 650.45:;lakhs vis-
ir-vis profit before tax of Rs. 755.82 lakhs in the corresponding previous year 2023-24
respectively. The company achieved production of 25773 MT and sales of 2644l MT
during the year under review which was considerably lower over the corresponding
previous year. The domestic demand during the year was poor and the flow of
government orders was subdued thereby affecting the overall volumes. Government
orders continue to be driver of volumes and growth for the jute industry. The exports
marginally improved during the year but still lags the momentum. Further the export
market continues to be impacted owing to ongoing Russia-Ukraine war and Israel-
Hamas conflict. t

'1s" f14,,1:,Ulzt;.1i;1:/:J&l-{, L}llliLJJ':2,:42{}!1;-/,,,.:,;f,} hI ,1""tr_Tfn;,?:2 z;tti:Tl*Zz-t'

A. rNousrRy srRucruRr eNo ouvrtopurNr
,,:!

Under the Jute Packaging Materials (Compulsory use in packing commodities) Act
1987 (JPM), the Government of India continued with mandated packaging norms
order for compulsory use of jute packaging material in supply and distribution of
food grain to the extent of 100o/o and sugar to the extent of 2Oo/o respectively.
However, the non-implementation of the mandated packaging norms under the
iPM Act by the sugar industry remains a challenge.

The Government of India raised the minimum support prices (MSp) of raw jute
from Rs. 5335/- per quintal for 2024-25 raw jute season to Rs. 5650/- per quintal for
raw jute season 2025-26 in order to ensure fair return on agricultural jute crop
produced by farmers. During the year under review, although the jute crop size
was lower compared to previous season but the availability was abundant due to
Iower demand. The usual demand from the end users of jute products was poor and
coupled with lower orders from government sector for meeting packaging needs
for food grain and sugar during the year led to adverse impact on the jute industry.
The jute industry had to cut operational shifts along with shortened working hours
causing wide spread job loss and financial burden on the sector. However, in the
last quarter of the year under review, the orders from government sector improved
considerably and the positive impact is being felt in the current year. The
Government of India has implemented the new price formuia in respect of



B

government orders for jute bags since November 2024 obviating the sufferings of
the Jute Industry.

AND

OPPORTUNITIES

The extension of packaging mandate by the Government of India'for 100o/o

reservation norms for compulsory usage of jute bags in meeting packaging

requirements for food grains and the serious efforts by Central Government for
implementation of packaging norms of 20o/o for sugar indusrry will certainly boost

the prospects of the jute industry.

Environment friendly |ute fibers with its inherent bio degradable qualities will
always remain a preferred pedium for packaging and other usage over the plastic

and synthetic fibers.

a

a

THREATS

i) The Compulsory packaging order issued by government of India under JPM Act
1987 for compulsory packaging of 100o/o of food grains in jute packaging Inaterial is
a function of government policy and procedures. However, the support under ]PM
Act to the jute industry has been continuing from years and is likely to continue in
the interest of workers and farmers.

ii) The international markets are still reeling under the impact of prolonged
ongoing Russia -Ukraine war and Israel-Hamas conflict.

iii) The fluctuation in raw jute crop size is a function of weather conditions
coupled with area under cultivation and the same governs the raw material prices.
However, the availability of raw jute has been abundant during the year under
review due to lower demand.

irr) The shortage of workers is a matter of concern for the jute mills

C. SEGMENTWISE OR PRODUCTWISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in single business segment i.e. manufacture and sale of
jute goods. Hence, disclosure requirement in respect of buSiness segment is not
applicable under accounting standard AS- 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.



D. OUTLOOK:

The jute industry is dependent of the vagaries of the monsoon and with the normal
anticipated weather conditions, it is expected that better quality of raw jute would
continue to be available. Reports of normal sowing of new crop for the jute year
2025-26 coupled with favorable weather conditions could help stability in crop size
and prices. The outlook of jute industry is bright with favorable Governmenr
policies and robust government procurement orders. Moreover, the export markets
are likely to overcome the aftermath of ongoing situation and the domestic markets
appears to be good.

E

The internal controls of the company have improved with higher frequency of
internal checks and balances so as to provide clesired timely alert signals. The
upgraded internal controls coupl6d with the existing installed ERP system will help
in meeting the appropriate results. Moreover, the internal audit mechanism is in
place to conduct the routine checks on a regular basis throughout the year for
better control and efficient management.

F. FINANCIAT PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERTIONAL
PERFORMANCE:

The following are the significant areas of financial performance:

"i
( Rs. In lacs )

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024

Revenue from Operations (Net)

Cost of Material Consumed

Finance Cost

Profit After Tax

Inventory

28989.16

16424.39

7217.92

482.13

11705.37

34009.54

20602.00

948.24

559.99

12274.30

G. HUMAN RESOURCES



The industrial Relations of the production unit of the Company during the financial
year 2024-2025 were peaceful and harmonious. Supervisory Development programs
on productivity, safety, cost control, communications and human relations are being
carried out as a matter of routine. With high level of Commitment and loyalty by staff
members, the Company is confident to face the challenges of competitive market
conditions.

H. CAUTIONARYSTATEMENT

Statement in this Management Discussion and Anaiysis Report, describing Company's
objective, projection, expectation, estimate or prediction is based on the prevailing
Industry position and market conditions which may be different from what is
envisaged with regards to future prospects and performance. However;:ithis may
undergo changes in future in view of the volatility involved based on weather
condition, Government Policy relating to Jute Industry, global demand and market
trends.

{t.{:,c1"?".?1$,t*:,11.fi ,{}t.;ll:T;:,K?;i,l;2,7."4.{)2:;.1,

In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate report on
corporate governance together with a certificate from
M/s PRAMOD AGARWAL & CO., a firm of practising company secretaries,
confirming compliance thereof is given in ANNEXURE-I forming part of this report.

7. l1yi"::i4JhLrqriwlz4i:i , .ri
The Annual Return of the Company is available on the Company's website:
http ://.,i,rzvw.ballyjute. com/.

ffi "7"{1J-:?Ay2Tk{:i:i53*h1q.i3u:$fraTY:fi 

':&The Board of Directors met 18 (Eighteen) times during this financial year ended on
31" March,2025. For details of the meeting of the Board, please refer to the corporate
governance report, which forms the part of this report.

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adeguacy are included in
management discussion & Analysis which form part of this report.

,.:i



x{:} ,,;

iils C: 2- l |Z:j :z',. 3{'

The particulars of loan, investments and guarantees have been disclosed in the
financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2025.

33

Y'1-2"fi lt1."l;i'*...;

As required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, related party transacrions are
placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Wherever required, prior approval
of the Audit Committee is obtained on an omnibus basis for continuous transactions
and the corresponding actual transactions become a subject of review at subsequent
Audit Committee Meetings. 

, .:;

All the related party transactionsr that were entered into during the financial year
were on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business and in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 there were no materially significant related party
transaction which may have conflict with interest of the company or which are
required to be reported in form AOC 2.

The disclosures as required AS - 18 have been made in Notes to Accounts of the
Financial Statemenrs for the year ended 31,, March ,2025.

n2""

'14.

{",{it-'i:/2!ii2l;1,2"

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

13" &il*{tfiel: fr}jdt}ilj: ' ri

The Notes on accounts referred to the auditors'repoft are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further explanation.

There is no material change in the financial position of the Company subsequent to
balance sheet date which will affect the Company.

'r2_ Z\

As required by the Companies Act 2013, the relevant data pertaining to the
conservation of energy etc, are given in AM{EXURE -2 of this ,"por,. i;



i*,"?l.,Jrg%"_w,&J_ah!;i{ruffi ff "n:rfr "{-tr11,*:{

In compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has

put in place Risk Minimization and Assessment Procedures. In order to effectively

and efficiently manage risk and address challenges, the comPany has formulated Risk

Management Policy.

The combination of policies and procedures adequately addresses the various risks

associated with your Company's businesses.

17 . 1i)'t!,2]i:,1"; r Lt "i!,]n

During the year under review, Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (DIN - 08708069), whose

1,, tenure as an Independent Director would'be completed from 25'h Febru.ary,2025.

Therefore, he has been re-appointed for a 2"d tenure as an independent director for

the next 5 years with effect from 26'h February, 2025 to 25'h February, 2030.

Thereafter, during the year Mr. Shashi Prakash Purohit vacate his position as a

Manager due to his personal reason as on 29th November, 2024 arrd in place of him
Mr. Rabi Prakash Sharma has been appointed as a Manger (KMP) of the company

with effect from 06'h December,2024.

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (DIN- 07168214), shall retire by rotation at the ensuing

annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

The information about the director seeking re-appointment as required by Regulation

36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings have

been given in the notice convening the ensuing annual general meeting 
";
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AIl the independent directors have declared that they meet the criteria of
independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Regulation 16(1Xb) and Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

I



In the opinion of the Board of Directors, there has been no change in the
circumstances which may affect their status as independent directors of the-Company
and the Board of Directors are satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experien.e of ait
the independent directors on the Board of Directors. All the independent directors
have registered themseives on INDEpENDENT DIRECTORS DATABANK.

3 u " w.ff3 "tutr luw l:.* _W hL y:gffi*ffiHxz_

During the year under review, the following changes in Key Managerial personnel
(KMP) as per provision of Companies Acr, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

' Mr' Satyananda Sahoo CFo of the company vacate his position due to his
sudden demise on 24th March, 2024 and in place of him Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Agarwal appointed as a cFo cum cS with effect from 0gth April, 2024.

t

. Mr. Shashi prakash purohit had been,resigned from the post of Mariager with
effect from 29'h November , 2024 and in place of him Mr. Rabi prakash Sharma
been appointed as a Manager with effect from 06,h December ,2024.

2 {'}. T t ; !i1=}{ ; t} ?;}: fr*i\"'S

The Company has not accepted deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73
of the companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under. Further, no amounr
on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the
date of the balance sheet.

2"1 " frti,iq,z.ffi beLl:aL lZtr:ry' V

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Rakesh Agarwal & co., a firm of.practising
company secretaries (CoP 9014) (Peer Reviewed Certificate No. 6541/202i to 

"^rrlout the Secretarial Audit under the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013' The report from the secretarial auditor in Form MR-3 for the financial year
2024-25 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. The
secretarial audit report is enclosed as ANNEXURE-III to this report.

22" h.:fl,::iz.) ?,"1_,,a{,jVtriT lZfi:, h1_ {* h&p\,LlsffiLX,

In compliance to SEBI circular no. cIR/cFD/cMDl/27/201g dated og,h Febru ary,20lg
Annual Secretarial Compliance was conducred by M/s S. Dalmiya & Associates., (Cop
No' - 19603) (Peer Review Cert. No. - 1969/2022) practicing corirpany secrerary. The

i;



Annual secretarial Compliance Report in prescribed format under Regulation 24A ofSEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given asANNEXURE- IV which forms the part of this report. The observarions made in thereport are self explanatory. , 
,i,

Further' the company has uploaded the Annual Secretariai compliance Report for theyear ended 31st March, 2025 issued by the company secretary in practice with csELimited on 05,h May,2025.

In compliance to SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements)(Amendment) 2018 dated 09'h May, 2018, certificate from Non-Disqualification ofDirectors was given by M/s S. Dalmiya & Associates., practicing company secrerary(CoP No' - 19603) (Peer Review Cert. No.- 1969/2022). The Certificate from Non-Disqualification of Directors in prescribed format under Regulation 34 of sEBI (Listingobligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations is given as ANNEXURE- vwhich forms the part of this report. The observations made in the report are selfexplanatory.

,?,,2
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During the year ended 3lst March, 2025, your Company has spent Rs.13,27,000/_
(approx) on various CSR activities as per laid down under schedule VII of section 135of the Companies Act, 2013. The annual report on CSR activities, in terms of Rule g ofCompanies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Ruies, 2014, is provided 1nANNEXURE-VI forming paft of this report. During the year under review, our CSRprograms were oriented toward various activities for hunger, Poverty & Malnutrition,Promotion education to children and other various allied activities. The CorporAteSocial Responsibility Policy of the Company as adopted by the Board of Directors isavailable on Company's website

ofCSRCommittee is disclosed in the report on corporate of thisrepoft.
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The details pertaining to composition of audit committee are included in the corporategovernance reports which form the part of this report.

.t-r., 
"
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The Board members are provided with necessary documents, reports and internalpolicies to enable them to familiarize with the company's procedures and policies.
Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Board committee Meetings, on
business and performance updates of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration committee has Formulated the criteria fordetermining quaiifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors in termsof provisions of secrion 17g(3) of the companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

Nomination and remuneration committee (NRC) identiSr persons who are qualified tobecome directors in accordance ryith the criteria laid down. The NRC review thecomposition and diversity of Board, keeping in view the requirement of companiesAct, 2013 and SEBI( LODR) Regulations, 2015 and recommend ro rhe Boardappointment/ reappointment of eligible cancliclates including their terms ofappointment and remuneration.

t-)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised the criteria forevaluation of the independent directors, the Board and its committees. The Board hascarried out annual evaluation of its own performance, and that of its committees andindividual directors.

2*.'i&Vi"?/_v*"r:{;f }X/3:i':tl;V.ry,:*t}*tr{;r

Details of the Remuneration Policy are given in the corporate Governance Report.

3/;3"f ,%lri&-Xi"t"X.4_|ZW,{;

India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra) has taken the following rating ,"tiorri on Bally
Jute Company Limited,s (BJCL) debt instrumenrs:

Fund based Working
Limit

IND BBB/Stable Affirmed

Non-Fund-based Wor IND A3+

t

ts$rulqesg lype Ratins/Outlook

Affirmed



Capital Limit
Term Loan iND BBB/Stable Affirmed
Term Loan IND BBB/Stable

31

The company has adopted a whistle Blower policy, to provide a formal mechanism tothe Directors and employees to report their conc"r., uborr, unethical behavior, actualor suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy. Thepolicy provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail ofthe mechanism and also provide for direct access to the chairman of the Auditcommittee' It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access tothe Audit committee. The whistle blower policy is iosted on company,s website
(rru.r,r.'. trallyjute. c om)

41 /j
;:d

Particulars of employees and other details in terms of section 197 ofthe companiesAct 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 from part of this Report. However, in terms ofsection 136(1) of the companies Act 2013 the Report and Accounrs are be{ng ,".r, *the members and others entitred rhereto, exciuding these ,rr;;;;;. iilirrrr"*ur"
are available for inspection by the Members at rhe 

-Registered 
office of the companyduring working hours on working days for a perioa or zr days before the ensuingAnnuai General Meeting. However, a copy of the statement shall be made available toany members on demand.

2"3
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The company has not received any complaint of sexual harrasement during financial
year 2024-2025.

?,a " 
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As per the provisions of section 139 read with section 141 of the Companies Act,2013and Rules made there under M/s. R. Kothari & Co.LLP, chartered Accounrants,(FRN: 307069E/8300266) was appointed as Statutory Auditor of the company for aperiod of 5 (Five) consecutive years (i.e. 0lst April, 2022to3lst March ,2027).

Assigned



Capital Limit
Term Loan IND BBB/Stable Affirmed
Term Loan IND BBB/Stable Assigned

',11 
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The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower policy, to provide a formal mechanism ro
the Directors and employees to report their concern about unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy. The
policy provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of
the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the chairman of the Audit
Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to
the Audit Committee. The Whistle blower policy is hosted on company's website
(u.lr.w'. ball yj ute. c om )

ii's.T1{;:t1li.z}lLbW-*tZi{t.vlL1ttTitlt;,t}

Particulars of employees and other detaiis in terms of section 197 of the Companies
Act 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 frorr part of this Report. However, in terms of
section 136(1) of the Companies Act 2013 the Report and Accounts are berlg sent ro
the members and others entitled thereto, excluding these statements. The Annexure
are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company
during working hours on working days for a period of 21 days before the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. However, a copy of the statement shall be made available to
any members on demand.

{2%2;:/-:{1?,ffi1:*;ru",y:{,t}1*1t},9,{.1itr*b) ki&h,fr11,ffifi-%.il3,} t4t;"1:"3{3tr3

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harrasement during financial
year 2024-2025.

7a.'::.J l:ili:"il':,|)Jl:Z h:]",#&' tr:LW,{l

As per the provisions of section 139 read with section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rules made there under M/s. R. Kothari & Co.LLP, Chartered Accountants,
(FRN: 3070698/8300266) was appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a

period of 5 (Five) consecutive years (i.e. 01st April, 2022to 31st March,2027).

.,.1
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Further, consequent to amendment of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2018
appointment of auditor need not require to ratification at every Annual General
Meeting during the period from 01', April, 2022to 31', March,2027.

?15 " 1'!:L ll V:71',,% l',.,L fr"1, J :;/'ii /;) tr1/;)

The Company has appointed M/s Srimal ]ain & Co. as the Internal Auditors in the year
in 2018 for undefined period.

,,li
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As per direetives of the Central Government and in pursuance to the provision of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under, the
Company is required to carry 6ut an audit of Cost Records maintained by the
Company in respect of each financial year. As per recommendation of chairman of
Audit Committee, M/s B.G Chowdhury & Co., Cost Accountants, has been appointed
as cost Auditors to conduct the audit of Cost Records of our Company for the
Financial Year 2025-26. The remunerarion proposed ro be paid ro them,
recommended for ratification by the Audit Committee, require ratification by the
shareholders of the Company. In view of this, your ratification for payment of
remuneration to cost auditors is being sought at the ensuing AGM.

There is no company which has become or ceased to be the Company's subsidiary,
joint venture or associate company during the year. The Company does not have any
subsidiary, joint venture or associate company as on 3lst March,2oz5.

3,3"ilJ?,-%|T:{.3wbl?lff &#{2:1#ff nffi Zffi i-Y.-r.iT_hiti'r,rffi ,,TiWXi"

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, it is
hereby stated to the best of our knowledge and belief that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2025, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

i ,,i

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2025 ar,d of the profit /loss of the Company for that period;



c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the compary and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e/ The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively. ' :-

0 The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively. while affirming this, your directors confirm the
following:

Systems have been laid down to ensure that the transactions in the
company are executed in accordance with management,s authorization in
adherence to poiicies and procedures adopted by the Company.

The existing assets of the Company are verified at reasonable intervals and
appropriate actions are taken with respect to differences, if any. Access to
assets is permitted only in accordance with management's authorization
and no assets of the company are allowed to be used for personal'purposes,
except in accordance with terms of employmenr or only if specifically
authorized.

].

11

lV,

111. Systems and procedures exist to maintain checks and balances and to
prevent and detect frauds and errors.

Proper frameworks exist to ensure that ail transactions are recorded to
facilitate timely and effective preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.



The Directors wish to convey their gratitude and sincere appreciation to thecustomers, sharehorders, vendors, Bankers and empioyees at all revel for thecooperation and continued support received by the Co_pu.ry.

Place-Bally

Date - rc.07.2025 I

, 
":i

For and on behalf of the Board gf--Directors
For BALLY JUTE C0l\{FAllY LTII.

h-9-\c^- h
Director

(Chairman)

(00526787)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT



BATLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
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Phone: + 91.33-26712086, 2036, 5O4g, 5O51
Fax: 91-33-2671-A2Z0
E-mail: sa njay-agarwal@kanka ria g roup. com
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The Report containing the details of corporatd Governance system and procels at BallyJute company Limited pursuant to Part c of schedule v of spbt t risti"g obligation andDisclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015,,Listing n.g"iJi*;,) 
"'"*'-"'
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BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTi (THE coMPANy" believes in cultivating thevirtues of good corporate governance across the organization to attainsustained growththrough fair and ethical 
9:"1i"g. In pursuit to this oi'.lective, the company is guided by astrong emphasis to uphold the integrity, transparency and accountability in all its affairs.Tle 

-company's code of corporate gou".n*." is aimed to protect the long term interestof all its stakeholders.

2" z%{3,&&2fi3 tVW gSTr&*:tv€3&4. t

a) Composition of the Board ' 'l;

The composition of Board of Directors of the company has an optimum combination ofnon-executive directors in. conformity with Section iqg d the'Companio a"t, 201:(hereinafter referred to as_"the Act') and Regulation 17 of the securities and Exchange
!oar{ of India (Listing obligationt *q Diiclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(hereinafter referred.to as "SEBI I,isting Regulations,). prlsently, the Board of Directorsconsists of 4 (Four) Directors \nLth , Gwo) Non-6xecutive (indep.r,J"rtj-oirectors,
1 (one) Non-Executive Director, I (one) Non-Executive woman Director.

The Non-Executive Directors are liable to retire by rotation.

All Independent Directors of the company have been appointed as per the provisions ofthe Companies Act 2013 and,rules framed there under und u, per Listing Regulation.

None of the Director on the Board is a member of more than l0 cgmmitt.. o.'anurr,,unof more than 5 committees across all the companies in *rri.rrrr./Jh. j;;ii..tor. 
Noneof the Directors holds office in more than 2}.o-puni., and in more than i0 publiccompanies.

'ri
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b) Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Iast Annual General Meetingalong with no. of other Directorshipls) and other Board committee
chairmanship(s)/ Membership(s) held as-on 3l', March 202s.

*In case of committees, only two committees, viz. the Audit Committee and theStakeholder' s Relationship committee are considered.

**The directors of the company does not hold directorship in any other listed entity.

c) Expertise and Skills of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the company are required to uphold ethical standards ofintegrity and probity and are required to huu. .rp"rtir", 
"*p"ii";;; il;.J"Lo*t"ag.in the sectors relevant for the growth of the Company.

The Board members of the company are holding such skills, expertise and competenciesthat allow them to make effective contribution tJthe gou.J *a its committees.

Finance Leadershi

acti financial

1np SSbusine 1Sfinance an andrmportant inevitable
andfunction efficient financial 1Smanagement forcrucial andSUCCESS

sustenance. It results ln ln financialproficiency management,
andprocurement utilisation of andfunds contro thelling financialvitie andS fo resources of theStrategy and

Planning guiding
foAppreciation termlong- trends, choices andstrategic mexpenence

and leading teamsmanagerhent maketo tndecisions uncertainenvronments.
Global
Business

Understanding,

vertical

ties.

of balglo business acrossdynamics, vaflous
al withmarketsgeographic an ofunderstanding industry S,
Jregulatory urisdictions, economlc conditions, Sculture and a broad
onve obal market

Leadership
efficiency
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Leadership leadsexperlence to maxtmtze and to achieveCompany goals theby
ES andopportuniti threats,

and risk and the

Attendance Particulars

committee membership(s) / chairmanship(s)
held

No. of other directorship(s) and other Board
Name of the
Directors

Position

t B

S 0s/09t2024

At last
held

Other
p(s) bership(s)

ttee

Kumar Jain ID 18 Yes 5 0 0ibedita NED 18 Yes Nil 0 NilSarkar 18 Yes 1 1 NilNED Yes 8 Nil Nil

Committee
Chairmanship(s)

ID CNED)
Shyam Sundar Singh 18

Corporate/



financial performance and long-term growth. 

Procurement, 

Sales and 

Marketing 

Experience in procurement of raw materials, production aspects, 

marketing technical aspect of production, quality control, purchase 

management and developing strategies to grow sales and market share, 

build brand awareness and enhance Company reputation. 

Governance Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best 

interests of all stakeholders, maintaining board and management 

accountability, building long term effective stakeholder engagements, 

driving corporate ethics and values and observing appropriate 

governance practices. 

Administration Leadership in administration of a Company, results in long-term growth 

by planning, organizing, directing and controlling the operations, 

creating rules and regulations and making decisions towards achieving a 

common goal or objective of the Company 

 

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for the 

effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board: 

 

d) Number of Board meetings held and dates on which held: 

 

During the year EIGHTEEN Board meetings were held on 08th April’2024,                           

13th May’2024, 15th May’2024, 30th May’2024, 24th June’2024,                             

03rd July’2024, 12th August’2024, 24th August’2024, 27th August’2024,  16th 

September’2024, 12th November’2024, 29th November’2024,                                

06th December’2024, 28th December’2024, 07th January’2025,  25th January’2025, 

11th   February’2025 & 17th  March’2025.  

 

e) Responsibilities     
The Board’s prime concentration is on strategy, policy and control, delegation of 

power and specifying approvals that remain in the Board’s domain besides review 

of corporate performance and reporting to shareholders. 
 

f) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 

No director is inter se, related to any other director on the Board. 

 

g) Board Committees: 

The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry 

out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by members of the 

Board as a part of good governance practice. The Board supervises the execution 

of its responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible for their action. The 

minutes of the meetings of all Committees were placed before the Board, and 

were duly taken on record. 

 

h) Number of Shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive 

directors: 

None of the directors holds any shares or convertible instruments in the Company. 

 



i) Weblink for familiarisation programmes imparted to independent director is
disclosed:
The Company has a farriliarization programmes for independent directors and the
same is available on the website of the Company fU411U.UaUyfUfe{Ag). Thepresentindependentdirectorsarewell"o,,,",,*t-*iiffirut"
industry, the Company's model and their responsibilities as independent directors.
However the familiarizationprogramme wili be imparted as and when considered
by the board. , 

^ 
l;

j) Other provisions:

It is hereby confirmed that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, theindependent directors fulfill the .onditio.r. specified in the SEBI Listing
Regulations and are independent of the management. None of the independent
directors have resigned before the expiry of lheir tenure of appointment. rne
Company has developed proper systems to enable the Board of Directors toperiodically review 

-complianoe reports prepared by the company in respect oflaws applicabie to the company. -o.r..iive steps are taken uy ilre company torectify any instance of non-compliance. The Board of Directors have devisedplans for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to seniormanagement level.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the company, without the attJndance ofNon-lndependent Directors and members of the Management was held on27th December,2024 as required under Schedule IV to the Companies Act20l3(code ofIndependent Directors). At the Meeting, the Independent Directors:

Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole,

Reviewed the performance of the chairman of the company, taking into account theviews of Executive Directors and Non-Executive oirectors; and Assessed the quality,quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management andthe Board that is necessary for the Board to effectiv"ty una ..u.onuuiy'[?ror* ,t 
"i.duties.

Mr' Dipankar Sarkar and Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain attended the Meeting of IndependentDirectors. Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain chaired the meeting. 
r'^vv!,t' vr rrr

None of the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Director of the company has anymaterial pecuniary relationship or transactions with the company.
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a) Brief Description of Terms of Reference

The Company has duly constituted Audit Committee in compliance with provisions of
section 177 of the companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure requirement) Regulations, 2015 as amended form time to time.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the Section 177 of the
Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
requirement) Regulations, 2015. The broad functions of Audit Committee:

a. To discuss and review the comment on Internal Audit Reports submitted by
Company's Internal Auditor.,

b. To review the progress on implementation of the suggestions made by Internal
Auditors.

c. To discuss and review' the observations of Internal Auditors, cost control
measures, statutory compliances etc. in various functional areas.

d Recommending the appointment and removal of auditors and fixing their
remuneration.

,.I

e. Review with the Management the annual, half-yearly and quarterly financial
statements before submission to the Board.

b) Composition, Name of Members and Chairman.

The composition of the Audit Committee is given below:

Name & Designation Category Number of Meeting

Attended
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain (Chairman)

(Appt from 05.09.2023)

Independent Director 8

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (Member) Non Executive Director

Dipankar Sarkar (Member)Mr
8

c) MEETINGS

8

Independent Director



During the year Eight Audit Committee meetings, were held on 01rt Aptil 2024,06'n Mav, 2024, i9'h June 2024, o:' argr, t)ii[,"igrn ilpt.*u" r 2024, r2th November2024, I 1th February 2025 & 2f1 ytur"i zOzs.
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The company has duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration committee incompliance with provisions of section 178 of the "o*p*i", Act,2013 and Regulation 1gof SEBI (Listing obligation and Disclosure requirement) Regulations, 2015.

a' Make recommendations regarding the composition of the Board, identifyIndependent Directors to be inducted to the Iioard form time to time and takesteps to refresh the composition of the Board from time to time.

b' Identify person-s 
,who 

are ialified to become Directors and who may beappointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laiJ down,recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and .uoy our"*tuationof every Director,s performance. 
-

c' Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes andindependence of a Director and recom.."a to trr. g;urd policy relating to theremuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and oth";.;;;;-..r.
d. Formulate criteria for evaruation of Independent Directors and the Boar$.

e. Devise a policy on Board Diversity.

b)

u)

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration committee is given below:
N,ame & Designation

Number of

Meeting

Attended
Mr. Dipankar Sarkar, (Chairman) Independent Director 2
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain, (Member) Independent Director 2
Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (Member) Non Executive Director

c) MEETINGS

Category

2



P)l{i}g the-191Jwo Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held on
24'n June. 2024 & 06'h December,2024.

d) PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised the criteria for
evaluation of the independent directors, the Board and its committees. The Board carried
out annual evaluation of independent directors on the basis of criteria laid down. The
evaluation was done by the Board of Directors except the directors who was evaluated.

%. zkTi.wz il rq kT. bz,h, g: 
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a) Remuneration Policy

The Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees, purstant to the piovisions of the Act 20'13 and SEBI
LODR Regulations.

The philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial personnel and all other
employees of the Company is based on the commitment of fostering a culture of
leadership with trust. The Remuneration Policy of the Company is iligned to this
philosophy.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered the following factors while
formulating the Policy:

(i) Determine the level and composition of remuneration that will
motivate directors, KMps, senior managerial personnel and otherCompany. i

attract, retain and
employees of the

(ii) Provide a well balanced and performance based remuneration package taking into
account industry standard and relevant corporate regulations.

(iii)Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks.

n)

The Non-Executive Directors are remunerated by way of sitting fees. The sitting fees
payable to the Non-Executive Directors is based on the number of meetings of the Board
attended by them. Directors of the Company were paid a sitting fee as uid". during the
Financial Year 2024-25 for each meeting orihe goaia attended by them.

Directors are paid sitting fees at the rate of Rs. 1000/- for attending .u.f, Board,meetings.
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u) Nu*. of ,or-.*...,tire di...to" h*udios th. .o*-itt." ,

The members and chairman of the committee are:-

Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain (chairman)

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (member)

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (member)

During the year One Stake holders Relationsfuip Committee meetings were hpld on 24th
June,2024.

b) Name and desisnation of cohpliance officer

Mr' Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, the Company Secretary of the Company is the compliance
officer.

c) Investorscomplaints

No complaints were received from the Investors/Share holders.

ry " TZm,,Tru{:Zj: t*tuT&gT:&"{ XE

A committee of the Board constituted in year 2014 and re-constituted thereafter to
borrow money up to the extent of Rs.200 

"roi., 
and to give guarantee or provide security

in respect of loan tak:l bI others up to the limit of RJ.zodc.ores. The to*tnitt.. *u,
constituted to align with the requirements of Companies Act 2013. The Committee was
re-constituted with 

-"-ft., 
fr_o1ollh September, zoiz withmembers as Mr. shyam Sundar

Singh and Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain. The compositions of the committee are:-

Mr Shyam Sundar Singh (Member)

Mr. Aiit Kumar Jain (Member)

The committee met Six times during tl_re year under report on 30/05/2024,24/06/2024,
21 1 0812024, 05 /09 /2024, t2/09 /2024 and, 07 /01 /2025. 

-

''4" 
{-:{"324-g?433;A,4"K',W: ru*q_:g,kL_ 321ituaffitu&gg3zg_z.K,v {:{3.WgWK,tTL:"g/; $:bw;

a) Composition, name of members and chairperson

",i

/
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The details of composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee with
name of members and chairperson are as follows:

Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain (chairman)

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (member)

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (member)

Mr. Sanjay Kr. Agarwal (Secretary)

During the year One Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings were held on
01't April, 2024.

q, {,; %fi,{K. 14, AV,'n?u{.J: Zi?T,?/ g T.W,T' y ru q ; fu

a) r:

Financial Year Location Date Time Special
Resolution

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

-do-

-do-

-do-

0s.09.2022

05.09.2023

0s.09.2024

10.00 A. M None

10.00 A. M One

10.00 A. M One

b) POSTAL BALLOT

No special resolution-was passed last year through postal ballot and special resolution isproposed to be passed in the current year but.r.h it"* ofbusiness are not covered under
section 110 of the companies'act 2013 . Further as per notification dated 13th June,
2018, the companies having members up to two hundred are not required to transact any
business through postal ballot.

Z{}" 4:{"k'x:3 ti, {}"3! t:ffituAy&I{)"Hi| :

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and SeniorManagement of the company. All the Board Members and Senior Managementpersonnel have affirmed compliance with the Code for 2024-2i. A declaration to thiseffect duly signed by manager forms part of this Annual Report.

,,1
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The Company had submitted its Quarterly, Half Yearly and Yearly financial results to the
Stock Exchange soon after its approval by the Board and published the same in News
Papers as required by listing Regulation.

The quarterly, half yearly and annual working results of the company are published in
newspapers like Financial Express (English) and Arthik Lipi (Bengali).

The Company has its own functional website www.ballyjute.com where information
about the Company's Quarterly, Half Yearly and Yearly financial results, annual report,
distribution of shareholding at the end of each quarter required to be disclosed under
Regulation 30(8) and 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation,2015 are regularly updated.

i). {i{.."tfr,.?+".:"2-h&A.\&41'.',tr.tr '"uT:.Et A:,"; {-prt-:,1,\"TELlf*

a) Annual General Meeting

43'd Annual General Meeting will be held on 5th September'2025 at 01.00 P.M. at
its Registered Office at 5, Sree Charan Sarani, Bally, Howrah -7II201,

b) Financial Calendar (2025-2020:
(tentative)

Quarter ending June 30, 2025

Quarter ending September 30,2025
Quarter ending December 31,2025
Quarter ending March 31,2026

: On or before 14th August,2025
: On or before l4thNovember, 2025
: On or before 14th February,2026
: On or before l4th May,2026

c) Date of Book Closins :

30th August,2025to 05th September, 2025 (bothday inclusive)

d) Dividend

The board has not recommended any dividend on Equity shares

e) Listins on Stock Exchanse : 1) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
(Intimation to stock Exchange for delisting of shares vide its Ietter dated 06.08.2020
and subsequent submission on various dates)

f) Demat ISIN - Not Allotted

g) Registrar and Share Transfer Asent :

ABS Consultants Pvt. Ltd.
"Stephen House", Room No.99
6th Floor,4, B.B.D. Bag (East),
Kolkata-700 001.



h) statrp of D"materialiration of Shares, as o, 3lst March" 2025.

As on 31't March ,2025,entire Equity Shares of the company are being held in
physical Form by the Shareholders.

i) Distribution of Shareholdine as on 3lst March" 2025

j) Catesorv of Shareholders as on 31st March. 2025.

k) Stock Market Data
thus High lLow market
based indices can not be

There was no trading during the year under review and
pflce data for Stock performance in comparison to broad
made

D Share Transfer S.vstem -During the period under review, no complaint was
received from the shareholders. No shaie transfers were pending as on j1r, March,
2025.

m) Registered office i 5, Sree charan Sarani, Bally, Howrah-7l l2ol.

n) Plant Location ; _do_

o) Address for correspondence ; -do_

X 3 ^ ttT,{b / {":W{3 t}Zt3;,q;,r-**r, {: l\'A:g{b?q

Slab of Shareholdings
No. of

Shareholders otto No. of Shares ot,o1- 500 15 37.5 590 0.004
501 - 1000 1 2.5 638 0.005

1001 - 2000
2001 3000 12 30 31375 0.24
3001 - 4000
4001 - 5000
5001 - 10000 7

10001 and above 12 30 12875056 99.75
Total , 100 12907659 'f 00

No. of Shares % of Shareholdings
Promoters 12882556 99.81
I nstitutional I nvestors
Bod

lndian Public 25103 0.19
NRls / OCBs

Total 12907659 100

40

Category



As required under Regulation 17(g) of the SEBI (Listing obrigations &Disclosure Requiremenls), Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director/Manager
and chief Financial officer of the company have certified-to Ihe Board regarding
review of financial statement for the,yeai under review, complianco with theaccounting standards and applicable laws and regulatio"r, -ui"t.'rr*..lrirrt.*rtcontrol for financiar reporting and accounting policies.

24. %&, *i,%,&,fu'A'2,..,*r gTti.,{JW&i3i& 3?dlK,*{T / V6t;{Zi,.., WZ!,{gi,tufuZturuq
The Company has an established mechanism for Directors / Employees to report
concems about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, oi villation of theCode of Conduct or Ethics Policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards againstvictimization of Directors/ employees who avail the mechanism.

None of the employee(s) has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

qfr" t;6A.Ar;9,"33.{ W"k'A-\ru{_; t

India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra) has taken the
Jute Company Limited's (BJCL) debt instrumenrs:

following rating actions on Bally

.t'l

3 /,?, {.3,6'b:4 glnA WAfu{.:A,{:3Wq.iXZg;

a) As requireci under the SEBI (LoDR).Regulations, 2lll,related party transactionsare placed before the Audit committeJ for app.ovut.'wh.."rer required, priorapproval of the Audit committee is obtained on u, omnibus basis for continuoustransactions and the corresponding act*al transaction, il;. ;;;rjd;r"ri"*
at subsequent Audit Committee Meetings.

All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financi al yearwere on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business and incompliance with-the applicabre provisions 
"f 

th" c.;;anies Act, 2013 and theSEBI (LODR) Regulations, 20i5 there were no matJriary significant relatedpafty transaction which may have conflict with interest of.the .J*;r;r-which
are required to be reported in form AOC 2.

The company has formylated a policy on related party transactions for purpose ofidentification and monitoring of such transactions.'rhe said policy and other

naU_qgpurleek
Fund based Working

Ca tal Limit
IND,BBB/Stable Affirmed

Non-Fund-based Working
Ca tal Limit

IND A3+ Affirmed

Term Loan IND BBB/Stable Affirmed
Term Loan IND BBB/Stabte



policies and code of conduct adopted by the Board are displayed on the website of
the Company (www. balli.j ute. com).

Disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in Note 33 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March,2025

b) Penalty of Rs.9440l- under Regulation 34 has been imposed by Calcutta stock
exchange during the Financial Year and the same has been paid on 28th April,
2025, and no other penalty imposed by SEBI or SEC, nor has there been any
instance of non-compliance with any legal requirements, or on matters relating to
the capital market over the last three years

c) Disclosure of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory :porporate
governance requirements:

The Company has made compliance with corporate governance requirements as

specified in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement / Regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b)
to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 read with schedule V to listing
Regulations.

Mandatory requirements: The company has complied with all mandatory
requirements under the Listing Agreement / Listing Regulations.

For and on behalf ofithe Board
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Ad * \a^^ -.^- ?f- .

Place:Bally
Date : 10.07.2025

AJIT KUMAR JAIN
DIRECTOR

DIN:00526787

'I
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BALTY JUTE GOMPANY LIMITED
CIN: LSl 9OgWBl 982PLCO35245
(An ISO 9001 2008, 14O01-2OO4 & {8001-2007(Gompany)
Regd.Office & Mills:5, Sree Charan Sarani, Bally,
'Dist.Howrrah, Pin.711 2O1, West Bengal, lndia

Place: Bally .

Date:10.07.2025

:;

Phone: + 91-33-26712086, 2036, 5049, 5051
Fax : 91-33-2671-8270
E-mail: sanjay,agarwal@kankariagroup.com

AJIT KUMAR JAIN
DIRECTOR "I

DIN: 00526787

In tetms of the Listing Regulations, I hereby confirm and declare that, all the Board
Members and Senior Management,Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance
with the respective Code of Conduct, as applicable to them for the year ended 31st
March,2025.

For and on behalf of the Board
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

\& \c.u-..^q- Y

,i



{n-lv lurr coMPANY LTMTTED
ClNr L5r909WB, 9a2PLCO35245

Phone: + 91-33-26712086, 2O36! 5049, 5051
Fax . 91-33-2671-a27O
E-mailr sanjay-asarw:ll@kankaria group,com

(An ISO 9O0t 2006, l4ool-2004 & 18001-2007(Company)
Regd,ofiico & Mills: 5! Sree Charan Sarrni, Balln
Dist.Howrrahr Pin ' 711 201,lvest Benqal, lndia

a.}}'{Pl,IANCe C5R?titar,l-t'rl

[Pursuant to l{egulation 17(8) read }vith l'art B of Schedulc II ofSEBI
(Listing Obligrtirlns lrnd Disclosurc Rcquircmclts) Regulations, 20151

Ctia'f :l.':C:n'l'!Ot{ l'lt0M l{AN {;tt{ & cFo of 't'}tE {t{}1{P^NY

To
'l he Board ofDirectors
Ba11y Jute Companl I-rd

\Ve. Rabi Prakash Sharma, N.Ianagcr and Sanja) Kumiu Agaiwcl, Chicf FinanciaL Oflicer
of Ball).lute Compan) Ltd (the Cr/nrpany') to the best of our klorvledge and belicf
cerlii,\'thar:

a) \trre had re\iewed thc finaocial stalements and thc cash llou'statement lbr.the
tinancial year ended on i1.01.2025 and that to thc bcst of our knowledge and
beliel *e stale lhati

These statenlenls do not conlain til materialll ulltruc statcnlcnt or omit
any mltelial 1irc1 or contain an\'slalenrenls thal might bc rnislcading:

l'hcsc statclnonls together present a truc and fair vierr offte Comparly s

afl'airs and ar'e in corupliarce $,ith existing accounting sundar--ds.

applicablc larvs and regulation.

b) \\c turthcr statc thar to the besL of ou| knou,lcdgc and beliel, there are no
traosactions elltered illto bv the Cornpanl during thc 

"1car. 
r\hich are liaLldulent,

illcgal or violatilc ofthe Cornpanl's Ciode ofConduct.

c) Wc hcrcbl declare dlat all d1e menlbers ofthc Board of t)ilectors and Executive
Connnillee have confirnrcd corrpliance with the Code o1-Conduct as adoptcd b1,

thc Compan).

d) \Ve are responsible lbr establishinp iuld maiotaini1lg intemal contro]s 1br linancial
reporting and that \\e had craluated the etl'ectiveness ol'inlernal control svstoms
of rhe Companl pcrtainiug to financial reporting ol- the L'ornpany and had
disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Clonmirtee, dellciencies in the design or
operation ofintelnal coDtrols. i1 anv. oi \1hich \!.e are a\rareand lhe steps \!e have
taken or proposcd to take to rectil_! these deliciencics.

1

5. iliddleton Street. (olkata 7oo 071. W. Benoal, Phone 91-33-2283-5028/5029. Far No.: l1-33-2289-2516



c) Wc had ildicatcd, bascd on our n]osr recelt evaluation, rvherever applicable. to
thc Auditors and thc Audit Comnittee:

signiticant changes, if an1, il intemal control over llnancial reporting
during the lear:

signifcanr chaulges, il an], in the accounting policcs cluring tlrc,vcar
and that thc samc has been disclosed in the Dotes 10 &e financial

Instances of signitlcant fraud ofllrich tc have become arvare ald lhe
inrolvcrnent therein, if iurl, ofthe rnzrnagernent or an employee having
significant rolc in thc Company's intemal control systen o\'er the
lln.ncicl reno-rir -,.

11

lll.

("1, Y*o- /"-"
Rabi Prakash Sharna

(Manager)
anjay K Agaru€l

(CS Cum CFO)

co.
o

Placc: I3a11y

Date: 10.07.2025
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PRAMOD AGARWAL & CO.
Practising Company Secretaries

BAGRI MARKET
71, CANNING STREET
4rH FLOOR, ROOM NO.C459
KOLKATA.TOOOOI
- 03348001953
E-MAl L: pra$lod,:rsa rrr a1267?Osmail.tonl

CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES REGARDING
C0NDITIONS OF CORPOBATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Place: Kolkata
Date : 10.07.2025

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Bally Jute
Company Limited for the year ended on March 31,2025, as stipulated in Regulations 1T toZT
and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation aQQ) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
My examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. lt is neithbr an audit nor
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

ln my opinion and to the best of our informbtion and according to explanation given to us, we
certiflT th.al the company has complied with thb conditionj of Corporate dor"rii"n"" ,.
stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 / Listing AgreemenG, to the
extent applicable to the Company during the year under report.

We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of thecompany nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has condutteO tneaffairs of the company.

COMPLIANCE OF

r."'i

For Pramod Agarwal & Co.
Company Secretaries

PRAMoD ffilwh**o
AGARWAL i,iB@ilileF

Pramod Agarwal
(Proprietor)

C. P. No. :4193
UDIN : F005895G000753070

."'1



BATTY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L5l909WBl982PLC0352d5

(An ISO900I :20 I 5, I 400 I :2004 & 1800 I :20 I 5 Com pany)
Regd. Offic & Mills : 5, Sree Charan Sarani, Bally
Dist. tlowrah, Pin-7ll 201, Wcst Bengal, India

11.

111.

Phonc : +91-33,.2671 2086. 2036, 5049, 5051

Fax : +91-33-2671 8210
';.1

E-m ail : sanjay.agarwal@kankariagroup.com

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule S(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20141

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY ,,

i. Steps taken or impact on Conservation of energy :

I
In the past few years, the Company has tried to improve energy
efficiency significantly by various measures. Steps taken to conserve
energy include:

1. At its plant, the company has carried out various modifications in
layout to optimize energy consumption and reduce losses.

2. Energy efficient motors aie being installed in order to optimize use of
power.

3. In its plant and offices, the Company has replaced conventional light
fixtures with energy efficient fixtures such as LED lights and rubes.

4. optimization of machine speed, particularly in Spinning Frames and
S4A Looms.

5. Maintenance of all machines, including boilers and compressors to
make them energy efficient and minimize losses.

steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate'sources of energy:
The company is'making maximum use of narural lighting during day
time and gradually inducting safelux sysrem ro ger the factory system
illuminated.

capital Inwestment on Energy conservation Equipmenil The company
has been making investment on continuous basis for the purpose of
energy conservation.

i. Efforts made rowards Technology Absorption :

l::,,J;q47;4,T,&W{k:ri, ....1,,. "T {"3 "E:,':ffi, 7:r/;3 *,"TA"r;3' % T"TK"W {;bW: T:



11.

iv. Expenditure incurred on Research and Deveropment : Nil
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS /OUTGO

Fbr BALLY JI.,ITE COfulPAI\IY LTD,, hJ- \c^^- >F-
Director

lll.

Efforts towards technology absorption included continued efforts for
process improvements and installation of upgraded plant & machinery
to improve the efficiency, productivity and profitability of the
Company.

Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution :

Improved productivity and automation process. cost reduction has
however, been partly offset by the increase in cost of other input.

In case of imporred technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) :

1. The details of technology imported: The company has nor
imported any technology during the last three financial years.

2. Year of import,: Not Applicable

3. whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Appticable

4. If not fi,rlly absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,
and the reasons thereof : Not Applicable

Rs 404.251-

Rs 41.42/-

Earnings











ffiffi
S. ffialmiyu & Associates

Company Secretaries

SECRETARTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF
BALLY JUTB COMPANY LIMITED

THE YEAR ENDED 31'IMAR I

We have conductcd thc lcvicrv of tlre compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practiccs by BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter referred .as 'the listed

entity'), having its Registcred Office at 5 SREE CHARAN SARANIBALLY HOWRAH 711201.

Secretarial Revierv rvas conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the listed entity's books, papers, minutes books, forms and relurns filed and

other records maintained b,v the listed ent{ry and also the information provided by the listed entity, its
officers, agents and authorizcd representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, rve hereby report

that in our opinion, tlre listed entity l.las, during the revielv period covering the financial year ended on

March 31,2025, cornplied rvith the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the listed entity has

proper Board processcs and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the marurer and subject to the

reporting made hereinalier:

(a) all the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by lv{/s. BALLY ruTE
COI{PANY LIMITED ("the listed entity"), , :;

(b) the filingsl submissions rnade by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

(c) website of the listed entity,

{d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification,

far theyear ended 3l!t March, 2025 ("Review Period') in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

(a) tle Securities and E.xcltange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act') and the Regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued thcrcunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA'1, rules made thereunder and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issucd thereunder by tlre Securities ond Exchange Board of India ("SEBI");

76, Ashutosh Mukherjee Road, Kolkata- 700 025, ph: +91-9A74316346

,tKo0rFr*

'l

Email: sdalmiya.associates@gmair.com, website: www.sdalmiyaassociates.com
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I, lv{/s. S. Dalmiya & Associates, Practising Compahy Secretaries have examinedl
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S. fralrruiya & Associfrtes
Company Secretaries

We have concluctcd thc reviov olthe compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practiccs by BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter referred .as 'the listed

entity'), having its ltcgistcred Office at 5 SREE CHARAN SARANIBALLY HOWRAH 7ll20l.
Secretarial Revierv rvas conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Iisted entity's books, papers, minutes books, forms and retums filed and

other records rnaintained by the listed ent{ry and also the information provided by the listed entity, its

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, rve hereby report

that in our opinion, tlre listed entity has, during the revierv period covering the financial year ended on
March 31,2025, courplied rvith the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the listed entity has

proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinaller:

I, M/s. S. Dalmiya & Associates, Practising Compahy Secretaries have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by lWs. BALLY JUTE
COI\,{PANY LIMITED ("the listed entity'), 

,:,

(b) the filings/ submissions rnade by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

(c) website of the listcd entity,

{d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification,

for the year ended 3lst Marclt, 2025 ("Review Period') in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

(a) tle Securities ancl E.tclrange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act') and the Regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued thereunder; and

76, Ashutosh Mukherje e Road, Kolkata- 700 02S, ph: +91-9974916346

Ka&bre

Email: sdalmiya.associates@gmail.com, website: www.sdalmiyaassociates.com

SECRETARTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF
BALLY JUTE COTUPANY LIMITED

ITOR THE YEAR BNDED 3ISIMARCH,2025

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the Regulations,
circulars, guide lincs issucd tltereunder by tlie Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI");



Tle specific Regulations, rvlrose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been

examined, includc:-

(a) Securities anrl lixchangc Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

20151

(b) Securities ancl Excharrgc Board of hidia (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2018;

(c) Securities and Exchange Iloard of India (SubstantialAcquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,

2011;

(d) Securities and Excltange Board of India (Buyback of,securities) Regulations, 20lB; ,:i

(e) Securities and Exclrange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equiry)

Regulations,202l; 
t

(8 Securities and Excharrge Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non Convertible Securities)

Regulations,202l;

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(i) other regulations as applicable and circularsi guid.lines issued thereunder;

and based on the above cxatnination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period the compliance status of
the listed entity is appended as below:

Observations/ Remarks of
by Practicing Company

Secretary

Particulars Compliance
Status

(Yes/I"{o/

Sr. No.

Sccrclarial Standards:

The con:pliances ol tlre listed entity

arc in accordance rvith the applicable

Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by

the Instituts of Cornpany Secretaries

India (ICSI), as notificd by the

Central Covernmcnt under scction

I I 8( I 0) ol' tlrc Cornpanies Act, 2013

and n:anrlakrri ly appl icable.

YESl.



2. 0n :rnd timcly updrtion of

All applicable policies under

SDBI Regulations are

adopted rvith the approval of
boarcl of directors of the

Iisted entities

All tlrc policies are in
corrlbrrnity rvith SEBI
Rcgulations and haye been

revierved & updated on time,

as per the

regu I ations/circu I ars/guidel in

es issued by SEBI

a

a

Adupti
thc I'olicics:

YES coMPr,,rFD

J. I Mlintcrrirucc antl disclosurcs on

I Wcbsitc:

. Thc Listccl enti; is

maintaining a functional
rvcbsitc

r 'l'inrcly dissernination of the

docunlcnts/inlbrmation under

a separate section on the

rvcbsite,

. Web-links provided in annual

corporate g0venrance reports

urrdcr Itcgulrtion 27(2) are

occurilte and specific rvhich

rc- directs to the relevant

docunrent(s)/ section of the

rvcbsite.

YES coMPLIF.D

4. Disq ualilicn tiou of I)irector:

None of the Direclor(s) of the

Company is/ are disqualified under

Section 164 of Conrpanies Act, 2013

as confirnred by the listed entify.

YES COMPLIED

s
I 
Octaits rslatcd to Subsidiaries of

I 
Iistcd crrtitics lravc I-recn cranrinerl

I rv.r.t,:

(a) lelentilicatiorr of material
subsidiary cornpanies

NA NA

-rl ,'., i tli
1f .' ;"".t -

rd;a . I ,.
I

.,.*r,;s



ure requirement of
matcrial as \\ell ils otller su[:sitiiaries.

(b) Disclos

cn'irtion of l)ocunre nts:

The listcd cntity is preserving and
maintaining records as prescribed
under SEIII llegulations and disposat
of rccords as per policy of
Preservatiolr of fjocuments and
Archival polic;- prescribed under
SEtll LODI( I{cgularions, 20 I 5.

Prcs
COMPLIED

The listcd entity has conducted
performancc cvaluation oIthe Board,
Indepcntlent Dirsctors and the

Cornmittucs at thc start ol every
financill yclrldurirrg the firancial
ycflr irs pr*cribed in SEBI
Regulatiorrs.

Pcrforrr :urcc Iivaluation:

I rtcrl lrnrtl"l'rir nslrcl inns:

(a) 'lhc listcrl cntitl, iras obtaincil
prior upplovrrl ol' Arrdit ("nrrrrrriltcr

lbr all re lirtcrl l)il't.\' tr{lnsitcliunsl ur

(b) 'l'lru. lisrcd cntit.r, h:rs prnvideil
dcttilcd rcilsolls llong rvith
confinrurtiorr u,hctlrr:r thc
trunsactions

wcrc subsequently
npprovecl,i'ltilicd/r{ccted by rhe

.*\uilit Conrnrittee. in case nu prior
approval hirs lrecn obtained.

Itcl COMPIIED. .

Onrnibus approval has been

appnrvcd by the aurlit
committse and accordingly
rclatcd pflrtJ transastioffi

takes place.

9 of eYefits or

The listed entit"r, has provided all the
requircd disclosure(s)under
Regulrtion 30 along u,ith Schedule

III ol'S[t3l LODR Regulations, 20l5
rvithin thc tirne limits prescribed
there under"

Disclosurc
tnlOrlillltloil:

YES

6.

1
YES COIVIPLIED

"'!



YESProhibition ol' Insitlcr Tradin g:

The listed entity is in compliance

rvith l{cgulation 3(5) &3(6) SEBI

(Prohibition of Inside r Trading)

Regulations.20 I 5.

10.

YESActions tnlicn by SEBI or Stock

Exchangc(s), il'any:

No actiorr(s) has been taken against

the listecl entity/its promoters/

dircstors/ subsidiaries either by SEBI

or by Stocli Exchanges (including

under the Standard OPerating

Procedulcs issued by SEBI through

various circulars) under SEBI

Rcgulatir:ns and circulars/guidelines

issuccl thercrtncicr except as prdvided

under scparate paragraPh herein.

11

Atltlitioull Non-com;tliflnccs'
tily:

No nclclitional nott-cotnpliancc

obse rvecl {br flnY SEBI

ru lat iou/c it'cu lar/gu idance note etc.

if

reg

12.

Compliances relatecl to r.csignation of statutory auditors lrom listed entities and their material subsidiaries as

per SEBI Circulnr CII{/CllD/CMDI/l l'll20l9 dated lSth October,20l9:

Compliance
Sttlus
(YesA.{o/NA)

0bservations/

ffi;:H- .*,":l
Secretary

Sr. No. Particuhrs

I Conrplinuccs u'ith thc follo*'ing conditions rvhile appointing/re-appointing a[ auditor

i. lf the auditor has resigned

rvithin 45 days frotn the end

of a qtrarter of a financial
year. the auditor before such

resignation, has issued the

limited revien'l audit report

for such qLlalten or'

ii. lf tlre auditor has resigned

after 45 da1's li'our the end of
a quarter of a linancial year,

NA

ffi

NA

NANA



l0 Prohibition ol' Insitler Trading:

The listed entity is in compliance

rvith l{cgulation 3(5) &3(6) SEBI
(Prohibition of Inside r Trading)

Regulations.20l5.

YES

1l Actious talicn by SEBI or Stock
Exchangc(s), il'any;

No action{s) has been taken against

the listecl entity/its promoters/

dircctors/ subsidiaries either by SEBI

or by Stocl< Exchanges (including

under thc Standard Operating

Procedurcs issued by SEBI through

various circulars) under SEBI

Regulations artd circulars/guidelines

issucd tlrercrtncicr except as p/ovided

under scparate pflrilgraph herein.

12. Atklitiorral Non-cornpliflnces' if
flny:

No lclclitional
obscn,ed {br

non-cornpliance

ony SEBI

regir lat iort/circu ce note etc.

Compliances relatecl to rcsignation of statutory auditors lrom listed entities and their material subsidiaries as

per SEBI Circular CIlt/CFDiCIvlDl/l l4/2019 dated lSth October,20l9:

. :..;-,{-:,..

Sr. No. Particulurs Compliance
Strtus
(YesA.{o/NA)

0bseryalions/

iffi:f, "";,,:lSecretary
I Conrpliirnccs u'ith thc follorving conditions rvhile appointing/re-appointing afr auditor

I

I 
i. If the nuditor has resigned

I 
within 45 da1,s lionr the end

I of a rltraltcr ol a financial
year. the auditor bef<lre such

resignation, has issued the

limited leyien,/ audit report

for such qLtal'tel'l or

ii. lf the auditor has resigned
after 45 days li'onr tlre end of
a quarter ol a I'inancial year,

NA

_6h

NA

COMPLIED

YES COMPLMD

NA NA



the auriit*r be{bre sucli

rcsignltior,l. has issued the

liniitecl rer,icrvl audit report

for such (luilrler as n,ell as the

ncx{ qualtcr: 0t

iii. It'tlrc auditur lias signed

the linritr:d reviervl

report lbr thc first three

quarters i;l' a llr:ancial ;-ear,
thc auclitor bcfbre such

resigualion. lias issued

linritcd r"-r'iervr audit report

flor tlre lost qufirter of such

financial ycar as rvell as the

audit rr:port lbr such Irnancial

year.

nuditorZ Otlrcr eoutl rs rcla

i. I(cportirrg ol' cuttccrns by

Auditor ri.ith respcct lo tlte

listcd e rrtitl /its rnrtcrial

sut:sidilr.r' lo tlrc r\rrdit

Conrrttit{ce :

a. itt cltsc t,l'irrt,\ c(ttl(crrt trith
tltu tttttttguirtL'lll (ll' thc lirtcd
cnl.it.\'/nrltt' ri:r l suhsirlilry'
such us rtort-lrluilltrilitl' ol'
inlbrrnutiort / ntlrtcurtpr":raLitttt

b,r, tlre nlilnuguure nt rr ltich

has hirnrpgl'L1l tltc rurdit

proccss. lhc lrurlitor hls
npplorclrcrl thc Chrirruln ,tl
the r\uilit (lonrrnittec ot' the

listcd cntitl urril thr: Audit
Conrnrillcc shlrll reseire sucll

collcertl r,lirr.rcll)' and

immcdirrtr'I1' u'ithout
specilicnll,r n'aiting tbr the

quartcrl;' Audit Committee

meelings.

b. ln e ase thr auditor
prc,poses tu resign. all
concurns l'ith rcspect to the

ltst

to

Nr\

.w
,O'f



rtilli rii.,'r.:iil r-ii:illllltllts haS

lrteir lrrrri'*lll t{) thf lloticc OF

llie ,\rr"lil (tttttnitte e . In

casc,\ u ltct"c tlre Proposed

resignfltiiul is iiue t0 non-

receipt uf iir lolnration I
liom theexplauatiolr

comparl!'.

infonncd

the auditor has

the Audit
Conrrnittcc (ltc details

info rrn a t i o rri ex p I artati on

souglrt attd rtol provided bY

the lltitllagulllsllt. as

applicablc.

c. "l'hs Audil Cornrnittee /

Boarcl r.,1'l)irculors' as the

casc Ina)' bu. rjclibcrated on

tltc tnattcr ott rccciPt of such

inlbnnittiurt lioitl llts irrrditor

relating tr tlrc plol;oslrl tr:

rcsign irs ittctttitittr:d above

arld sotttttttttticltc its vicrr's to

the lttltlilgrlllcllt atrd thc

auditot',

ii. [)isullirrrur itt citss *l'ttttll'
rccciltt ul' it t lfrrrttlrt irttt:

'l'ltc ittrditrrr ltlts proi'itled ntt

appropt'ir.trt diselrtitttur irt ils
auclit lel)r1l'1. rr lriclt is itt

acctirdatte t' rr itlt thc

Slattrlitr.ls ttl' r\trtliting as

spcuilierl li.r IC'\l ''Nlf lL.'\' in

casc trltcrc tlrc listud crttitYl

ils tunturiitl subsiililrl' hits ttot

providcd intlrtnntiotl as

uired rhc uudilor.

Thc listcei cutiL) i its l'r1

subsidiitLy hits obtained

infoluutlion li'oru thc Auditor

upou resignation. in the

forniat ils sPecilied in
Annesure- r\ in SEBI

CIRICITD'CMD I / I I.{/20 I 9

datcd t 8rir Octobe r. 2019.

Circular'



Remar

ks

Manageme

nt
Response

0bservation

s/ Remarks

of the

Practicing

CompanY

Secreta rY

Fine

Amou

nt

Details

of
Violatio

n

Type

of

Actio

n

Actio

n

Take

nby

Deviatio

NS

Sr.

No

Compliance

Requireme

nt

(Regulation

sl
circulars/

guidelines

including

specific

clause)

Regulatio

nl
Circu la r

No.

NA

(a)The listed enti{,y lrar conrplied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/guidelines issuedthere

under, except in re :pect of nratters specified below:

(b) The listed entity has talten the following aclions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

Assumptions & I,iruitatiolt ol'scope and Revietr':

l. Compliance ol'thc rpplicirble larvs and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished'

are the rlsponsibilities uI the tuanagernent of the listed entity'

2.ourresponsibilitl'.istoccLtilybasaduponourexaminationofrelevantdocumentsandinformation.This
is neither an audit llor an cxprcssion of opinion'

', - .-.'^,.a.'.. -^,r an ial Records and Books'bf Accounts of
3. we have nO1 r'cr,ilicd lllc coll'cctncss and appropriateness of financial Records ano t'ooKs

the listed entitY'

Remar

ks

Manageme

nt

Response

Observation

sl Remarks

of the

Practicing

CompanY

Secretary

Fine

Amou

nt

Details

of
Violatio

I

Type

of
Actio

n

Actio

n

Take

nby

Deviatio

tl5

Regulatio

nl
Circu la r

l\io,

Compliance

Requireme

nt
(Regulation

s/
circularsl
guidelines

including

specific

clause)
NA

5r.

No



4. This Report ir solr:
(Listing obligations ,:i: ':j,:j::.:ll:-'"1'o p.urpose of comptiance in rerms of Regulatio nkaA {Z)of the sEBI
futurc viabi,,;, ,;, ;*,I*J'ffi[,#:ffi::,*;:i,i:':H*:i;.:lifiJ1,xfiT:'ffi;il:ili::
conducted the aflrrirs of.rhc lisri:J.nrirr. 

".

For S. Dalm iy:r & r\ssociutcs
Sccrctt l.ics

it

berstrrip No. FI2046
COI, No. I9603
Pecr Rcvicry Ccr.. No. lg6g12lll|

PI*ce: Kolkatt
Datc: 01,05.2025
UIIIN: trO I 2046C{)t}{rz.t6e{}7



ffiffi

frurrrE"ryAa *\/
,5. ffieslmiya & Associutes

Compainy Secreturies

,,-. . . qI,r{rlFlc^TI' oF NON_pTSOUALIFTCAT.TON OF DI]RECTORS(1lttrsLlltltttrtRegulatiorl3.l(3)andSclredulevlu@isting
Obligrtions tnd Disclosure Requirements) Regu)ations, 2015)

To,
The i\Icnrbers ol'
Bally Jute Cour1rarr.1, L,iurited
5, Sree Charln Siirarri,
llrlly, Ilorvrlh- 7l l20l

I have exatninqrd tllc relcvant registers, records, forms, retums and disclosures received from the Directors of Bally Jute
Company Linritcd lraving CIN L51909\YB 1982PLC035245 and having registered oIfice at 5 Sree CSaran Sarani Bally
Horvrah-71130 I (lieleirralier refelled to as 'the Company'), produced 6'efoie me by the Company fof the purpose of
issuing this cerritlcate, irr accordlnce r.r,ith Regularion ii(j; reaa with schedule V para-Cbut ctause tb(ij of the
Securities Excltangc lloarrl of India (Listing obligations and Disclosu.e Requirements) Regulation s,?015.

In my opiniort attd to tlrc best of my intbrrnation and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) statLrs ut tlre portal (w!vw.mca.gov.in) as considLed necessary and eiplanatiois fumished to me by the
Company & its otficers- I hereby cerlity that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the
Financial Year ending otr i I't Marcir, 2025 ltave been debarred or disqualified from beinjapiointed or continuing as
Directors olcornparties b1' the Securities and Exchange Board of Indii, Ministry of Corpo-rate Affairs, Kolkata oriny
such other Stalutor.r, Authority.

Sr. No. i',lanre ol'Dircctor DII'\'I Date of a tn
Nibedita iVlry'umder 07 168214

2. Shyam Surrdar Singh 06763614 451031202t
3 Dipankal Sarkar 08708069 26/02/2020
4. Aiit l(urnar Jain 00526787 05/09/2023

Ensuring the eligibilit;' ol' lbr the appointment / continuify of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management o{'llrc Corrrpany. OLrr responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is rle ither iirl .rssurance as lo the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or sffectiveness with
which the marragerirenl has conducted the affairs of the Comp3ny. l;

S. Dalnril,a & Assuciatcs
turics

Dalrniyu
P ctor

bership No.I'120J6
COP No. 19603

Pecr Revierv Cer'. No. 196912022

I'lace; Kolkall
Da(c: 0I.{15.2025

UDIN: F0 I 2 A 4 {tU UAUZfi AZt

.,,',

76, Ashutosh Mukherjee Road, Kolkata- 700 025, Ph: +91-98143j6346
Email: sdalmiya.associates@gmai

{|s\t#{a

l.com, Website: www.sdalmiyaassociates.com

04/0s/2015



\nu.v JUTE coMPAlrY LrMrrED
ch{: L5i gogyuB { 9B2PLco35245

'i
Phone: + 91-33-26712086, 2036, 5049, 5051
Fax : 91-33-2671-A270
E-mail : sanjaylagarwal@kankariag roup.com

(An ISO 9001 2008, {4AOL2OOA & {800t.2007(Gompany)
Regd.Office & Mills:5, Sree Gharan Sarani, Bally,
Dist.Howrrah, Pin. 711 2O1,.lYest Bengal, lndia

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programmes proposed to be undertaken. We believe in a responsible shared value
approach to augment industrial/growth together with actions directed to create prosperity
among all our stakeholders, employees and the community at large. During the year, our
CSR programs were oriented towards various activities such as Eradicating hunger, poverty
& malnutrition.

The CSR activities of the Company are aligned with the activities specified in Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 20L3.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

No.
Name of Director

Designation/ Nature

of Directorship

Number of
meetings of

CSR Committee

held during the

year

I Number of
lme.ting. of CSR

I Committee

attended during
the year.

I
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain Independent Non-

Executive Director
- Chairman

1 1

) Mr. Dipankar Sarkar
Independent Non-
Executive Director

1 1

3 Mrs.Nibedita Majumdar
Non-Executive

Director
1 1

4 Mr. Sanjay Kr. Agarwal Secretary 1 1

**?.a?L1Z*il*ffi -;H-2,,,,2,%39;9%-ffi,,f;#"ffi $H&ffi trWW

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
(Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the act") read will rule 8 of Companies (CSR) Rules, 2014)



3. Provide the web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR

projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company :

http : /ft*rvw-balkiuttecq m

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsihility Policy) Rules,

2014, if applicable (attach the report) : Not Applicable.

5. Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount

required for set off for the financial year, if any. :,

sl.
No.

Financial
Year

Amount available for set-off from
preceding financial years (in Rs.)

Amount required to be

set-off for the financial
year, if any (in Rs.)

- Not Applicable as no amount is required to be set-off -

6. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of
computation of CSR [as per Section 135 (5)]: Rs. 6,58,27,0001-

7, Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 6 above) :

Rs. 1 3, 1 6,540/- (approx)

8. Details of CSR spent for the financial year : Rs. 13,27,000/-

^. Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 13,27,0001-**

** Note: - Company spent in CSRmore than2o/oi.e. 13,27,000/- during the current financial

year & it is in excess of Rs. 10,4601- (Rs. 13,27,000 - Rs. 13,16,540). Therefore, whole amount

to be considered as an expense and it is not carry forward to the next year.

b. Amount unspent : NIL

c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year : As per CSR Policy.

d. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount
Spent for the

Financial Year. (in
Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to

Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VII as

per second proviso to section

13s(sI

Amount. Date of
transfer.

Name of
the Fund

Amount. Date of
transfer.



,.j

13,27,000/- Nir ---N. A. - ---N. A. -- NiI ---N. A. -

9. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of
the last three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report. N.A.

10. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the
Company.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance
with CSR objectives and policy of the Company. ;

Date :- 10.07.2025

2* 
(c^-^-r* 

?Fc-

\i{ 
i, Chairman of CSR Committee


